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BID COVER PAGE

Procurement Division

200 E University Avenue, Rm 339
Gainesville, FL, 32601

(352) 393-8789

Issue Date: Novemnber 11, 2020

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS: #HOUS-210001-GD
Affordable Housing Property Donation Pilot Program

PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING: & Non-Mandatory 0 Mandatory O N/A O includes Site Visit
DATE: Woednesday, December 2, 2020 TIME: 2:00pm
LOCATION. Zoom - Refer to Exhibit 6 for ZOOM access information.

GQUESTION SUBMITTAL DUE DATE: Wednesday, Decernber 9, 2020; 3:00prm

DUE DATE FOR UPLOADING PROPOSAL: Thursday January 14, 2021; 3:00pm

SUMMARY OF SCOPE OF WORK:

The City of Gainessille is seeking to donate non-contiguous vacant fand, 1o a nonprofit organization, o build affordable
owneraccupied single-family homes andfor duplexes. Generally, the lots are |ocated in the Duval Area of Northeast
Gainesvlle, along Northeast 9th Avenue, near Northeast 16" Terrace and Northeast 17 Street. The City desires that
the development of these lots contributes to the overall redevelopment of the area.

For questlons relating to this solicitation, contact: Gayle Dykeman, dvkemangb@cityofgainesvlle org

Bidder is not in arrears to City upon any debt, fee, tax or contract: K2 Bidder is NOT in arrears [ Bidder IS in arrears
Bidder is not a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to City:

£ Bidder is NOT in default [ Bidder IS in defautt
Bidders who receive this bid from sources other than City of Gainesville Procurement Division or Demand Star.com MUST
contact the Procurement Division prior to the due date to ensure any addenda are received in order to submit a responsible
and responsive offer. Uploading an incomplete document may deern the offer non-responsive, causing rejection.
ADBRENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENTY: Prior io submitting my offer, | hawe werified that all addenda issued to date are
considered as part of my offer: Addenda received (list all) # HOUS-210001-GD

Legal Name of Bidder: Alachua Habitat for Humanity

DBA:

Authorized Representative NamerTitle: Pavid Welss COO
E-mail Address: dwelss@alachuahabitat.org FEIN: 29-2750078

2630 NW 41st 5t. Ste. C-3 Gainesville, FL 32606

Street Address;

Mailing Address (if different):

DBA:
Telephone: (299 ) 404-1221 Fax: ( )

By signing this form, | acknowledge | have read and understand, and my busingss complies with alf General Conditions
and requirements set forth herein; ang,

% Proposal is in full compliance with the Specifications.
W Proposal is in full compliance with the Specificatio ?xcapt as specifically stated and attached hereto.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE: A

SIGNER'S PRINTED NAME: David Weiss DATE: 01/13/21

This page must be completed and uploaded to DemandStar.com with your Submittal. !
210001-AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROPERTY DONATION PLOT PROGRAM -Page 1 of 41



#HOUS-210001-GD Affordable Housing Property Donation Pilot
Program

Proposal by Alachua Habitat for Humanity (AHFH)

Project Understanding and Approach

The City of Gainesville is seeking to donate non-contiguous vacant land to a nonprofit
organization to build affordable owner-occupied single-family homes and/or duplexes in
the Duval Area of Northeast Gainesville, along Northeast 9th Avenue, near Northeast
16th Terrace and Northeast 17th Street.

AHFH plans to build new homes on these lots through our process used nationwide by
other Habitat for Humanity affiliates. We plan that the development of these homes and
fots contributes to the overall redevelopment of the area; an area we have previously
puilt many homes. In particular, they will help achieve a critical mass which in turn will
help complement several other nearby City initiatives, including the redevelopment of
the Clarence Kelly Community Center.

AHFH will build and seil these homes {0 a household that qualifies as Low-Income, as
defined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development at a price
that is, and will remain, affordable to those households. AHFH, the nonprofit
organization, will be required to selt the home and move the family in, within two years
of receiving the parcel. In the event that AHFH is not able 1o complete that task, the
ownership of the parcel will revert to the City.

As per our long track records within the City of Gainesville and Alachua County, all of
our homes will meet all of the city's housing program’s standards for health, safety,
accessibility, aging in place, structural integrity, storm resistance and the efficient use of
energy and water. All homes will be code-approved site-built homes and o modular,
manufactured, or prefabricated home will be buiit,

Qur building designs shall provide for code compliant, safe, secure, healthful, and an
attractive living environment suited to the social, economic, and recreational needs of
resident families and individuals, The design and layout of the homes shall focus on
ease of circulation, traffic flow, storage, and housekeeping; visual and auditory privacy,
compliant with all building code requirements including light, ventilation, fire, etc. The
residences shall also provide for accident protection, appropriate use of space and
sanitation facilities. Each residence shall provide for quality construction and materials,
and provide a varied aesthetic curb appeal that contributes to the neighborhood in a
positive manner. The homes will have a varied look and not look the same based
on each plan.



Qualifications of the Firm

Alachua Habitat for Humanity is currently a 501¢3 charitable organization registered as
a Florida Nonprofit Corporation. Our mission is to help provide low cost housing
solutions to residents of Alachua County. We are the largest builder of affordabie, owner
occupied homes under $150,000 in Alachua County as defined by HUD. We have the
expertise, skills, experience, business and financial capabilities to handle a project of
this size as we have been building homes in Alachua County for 20 plus years. We
currently do not have any pending litigation and have paid all debts to the City.

Part of our success is our ability to rely on the blueprint provided by Habitat for
Hurmanity International. We have an in-depth ownership approval process and provide
our own mortgages, and in some cases provide tand trust opportunities as needed. This
helps guarantee long-term affordable homes in the area.

We also follow a building process successful in the private sector which allows us to
streamline our staff, and procedures. Qur trade partners want to be a part of our team
as they not only get to help the community, but they also understand we will be
organized and they paid on-time. We use the latest builder software calied Buildertrend,
which provides purchase orders to keep our projects on track and on budget.

« We currently have the infrastructure to build in excess of 18 homes a year with
current staffing levels.

+ We are a financially viable, responsible bidder as defined by the Financial
Services Procedures manual 41-522

+ We propose the build a single family home on each ot including the lot on NE
16" Terrace.

o Timeline--We propose to start two homes as soon as we are awarded the
project, and then stagger starts of one home every two months thereafter, so we
meet the two year deadline. This is called even-flow production and allows us to
maximize our cash flow, labor force, and trade pariner use.

» The homes wauld be started on NE 9" Avenue once the city has the
infrastructure in place to make those lots buildable. The two year deadline on
those properties would not start until this infrastructure is in.

« We pian to build up to 4 different one story plans based on client needs and price
ranges. There will be a (A) 4 bedroom/ 2 bath plan, (B and C) two different 3
bedroom/ 2 bath plans, and (D and E) 2 bedroom/ 1 bath plan.



8.10 INVESTIGATION OF ALLEGED WRONGDOINGS, LITIGATION/SETTLEMENTS/
FINES/PENALTIES

Alachua Habitat for Humanity and any contractors we plan to use are not involved in any
investigations of wrongdoings, litigation and/or settlements, and fines or penalties

(anywhere in the U.S.). ‘ ; _ Foo
{ JY \/" D) 45> ‘/1(”4 FEH
Cost and Sale Prices

e Plan A will have a selling price of $150,000 and a hard cost of $111,000. There
will not be a realtor fee as we will sell the homes ourselves through our Home
Owners Approval Process.

¢ Plan B will have a selling price of $145,000 and a hard cost of $108,000. There
will not be a realtor fee as we will sell the homes ourselves through our Home
Owners Approval Process.

e Plan C will have a selling price of $135,000 and a hard cost of $102,000. There
will not be a realtor fee as we will sell the homes ourselves through our Home
Owners Approval Process.

e Plan D will have a selling price of $125,000 and a hard cost of $95,500. There
will not be a realtor fee as we will sell the homes ourselves through our Home
Owners Approval Process.

e Plan E will have a selling price of $122,000 and a hard cost of $94,500. There
will not be a realtor fee as we will sell the homes ourselves through our Home
Owners Approval Process.

e Due to the need to set-up a homeowners association for a duplex and the extra
management fees, and extra building code costs, we will build one single family
home on each lot. We do not feel a duplex is the correct solution in this instance.

¢ Depending on the customer needs or financing abilities, we are open to building
Carriage homes on select properties.

Alachua Habitat for Humanity places the priority order for each home site as first all lots
that currently have road access, and then secondly those lots that need to have an
access road to be built. And lastly, parcel 10677-14.



Other Included Items in Each House (see specification sheet)

+ Most homes will have different elevations and will meet the design requirements
including 7 foot deep porch covering 80% of the house width.

» We will have options for handicap accessibility depending on customer needs.

o All homes will include an exterior door with a viewer and doorbell.

« Al homes will include shrubs, trees, and sod on all paved areas.

» Each home will have an 18CF+ refrigerator, 30" range w/ hood, and a stainless
steel kitchen sink.

« All homes will receive a roof warranty and soil treatment certificate as per the
RFQ.

» Allfill dirt, grading, and utility services as needed.

Alachua Habitat for Humanity's whole mission is to provide affordable housing in
Alachua County. Qur saying “offering a hand-up, not a hand-out” sums-up our
phitosophy. Qur homeowners help build their home through volunteer work on their
own home and others. Because of this, they have a say and understand the value of
owning their own home. What better way than to award future homeowners the
opportunity to own their own home built by the largest builder of affordable homes in
Alachua County through the City of Gainesville Donated Lot Pilot Program? We have
the expertise, resources, and staff to successfully carry out the goals of the City of
Gainesville with regard to this project, and respectfully ask that we are awarded the 12
home sites.

-
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Budget Cost Summary for Job A

Code Estimates
1000 - 1999 Preparation Preliminaries
1005 - Builders Risk $150.00
1006 - Appraisals $300.00
1010 - Building permit $1,376.93
1011 - Impact Fees $5,500.00
1110 - Blueprint $500.00
1112 - Clearing $3,000.00
1112 - Fill $3,000.00
1114 - Utilities During Construction $200.00
1115 - Borings $200.00
1121 - Surveys $350.00
1121 - Surveys - Foundation $400.00
1123 - Porta Potty $560.00
1124 - Dumpster - Hauling $466.00
1221 - Soil Engineering $77.00
1470 - Electric service $632.50
$16,712.43
2000 - 2999 Excavation and Foundation
2010 - Plumbing—ground $2,161.50
2010 - Plumbing—rough $2,161.50
2010 - Plumbing—trim $2,227.00
2012 - Plumbing—sewer $550.00
2013 - Plumbing—water $137.50
2101 - Concrete Material $4,238.00
2104 - Concrete Labor $2,828.40
2105 - Rebar and reinforcing steel $476.58
2300 - Termite protection $131.04
$14,911.52
3000 - 3999 Rough Structure
3100 - Structural steel $534.45
3105 - Nails $100.00
3110 - Lumber—1st package $3,545.51
3132 - Lumber— Roof Sheathing $432.41
3133 - Lumber— Truss Engineering $108.08
3134 - Lumber—Dry-in Package $2,410.94
3140 - Trusses $3,420.08
3150 - Miscellaneous lumber $500.00
3210 - Framing labor $8,000.00
3299 - Window $1,589.50
3299 - Window; tempered bathroom $128.34
3300 - Window $46.26
3403 - Exterior column installation $150.00
3404 - Exterior shutters $100.00
3405 - Exterior shutter installation $60.00
3610 - HVAC $9,529.00
3810 - Electrical— labor $5,200.00
3810 - Electrical—rough materials $3,884.08

3910 - Electrical-—-trim $217.79



TOTAL COST:

TOTAL SALES PRICE

3912 - Soffit labor
3912 - Soffit materials

4000 - 4999 Full Enclosure
4100 - Roofing material
4102 - Roofing flashing
4150 - Roofing labor
4300 - Exterior door installation
4300 - Exterior rear door
4301 - Exterior rear door; laundry glass
4400 - Insulation

5000 - 5999 Finishing Trades
5100 - Drywall Material
5110 - Drywall Labor
5120 - Kitchen cabinets
5120 - Wilson Art formica tops
5200 - Interior trim material
5208 - Interior trim doors
5250 - Interior trim labor
5250 - Wire shelving - material/ labor
5300 - Painting - interior labor
5300 - Painting -exterior labor
5302 - Painting - materials
5530-Tile labor
5530-Tile material
5540 - Vinyl flooring labor
5540 - Vinyl flooring materials
5610 - Hardware
5650 - Appliances

6000 - 6999 Completion and Inspection

6100 - Clean-up

6200 - Final grade

6400 - Concrete labor
6403 - Concrete materials
6600 - Landscaping

After closing fees and soft costs

$400.00
$672.00

$1,857.62
$60.50
$2,920.00
$150.00
$382.64
$75.00
$3,165.00

$2,200.00
$2,242.50
$3,375.00
$2,205.00
$225.20
$876.00
$1,500.00
$304.00
$2,532.25
$2,532.25
$1,638.00
$652.00
$601.44
$1,099.00
$1,858.21
$737.06
$2,247.00

$150.00
$400.00
$1,290.00
$882.00
$365.80

$111,175.86

$150,000

$41,028.44

$8,610.76

$26,824.91

$3,087.80



Budget Cost Summary for Job template Plan B

Code Estimates
1000 - 1999 Preparation Preliminaries
1005 - Builders Risk $150.00
1006 - Appraisals $300.00
1010 - Building permit $1,376.93
1011 - Impact Fees $5,500.00
1110 - Blueprint $500.00
1112 - Clearing $3,000.00
1112 - Fill $3,000.00
1114 - Utilities During Construction $200.00
1115 - Borings $200.00
1121 - Surveys $350.00
1121 - Surveys - Foundation $400.00
1123 - Porta Potty $560.00
1124 - Dumpster - Hauling $466.00
1221 - Soil Engineering $77.00
1470 - Electric service $632.50
$16,712.43
2000 - 2999 Excavation and Foundation
2010 - Plumbing—ground $2,161.50
2010 - Plumbing—rough $2,161.50
2010 - Plumbing—trim $2,227.00
2012 - Plumbing—sewer $550.00
2013 - Plumbing—water $137.50
2101 - Concrete Material $4,238.00
2104 - Concrete Labor $2,828.40
2105 - Rebar and reinforcing steel $476.58
2300 - Termite protection $131.04
$14,911.52
3000 - 3999 Rough Structure
3100 - Structural steel $534.45
3105 - Nails $100.00
3110 - Lumber—1st package $3,145.00
3132 - Lumber— Roof Sheathing $432.41
3133 - Lumber— Truss Engineering $108.08
3134 - Lumber—Dry-in Package $2,245.00
3140 - Trusses $3,220.00
3150 - Miscellaneous lumber $500.00
3210 - Framing labor $8,000.00
3299 - Window $1,435.00
3299 - Window; tempered bathroom $128.34
3300 - Window $46.26
3403 - Exterior column installation $150.00
3404 - Exterior shutters $100.00
3405 - Exterior shutter installation $60.00

3610 - HVAC $9,267.00



TOTAL COST:

3810 - Electrical— labor

3810 - Electrical—rough materials
3910 - Electrical---trim

3912 - Soffit labor

3912 - Soffit materials

4000 - 4999 Full Enclosure
4100 - Roofing material
4102 - Roofing flashing
4150 - Roofing labor
4300 - Exterior door installation
4300 - Exterior rear door
4301 - Exterior rear door; laundry glass
4400 - Insulation

5000 - 5999 Finishing Trades
5100 - Drywall Material
5110 - Drywall Labor
5120 - Kitchen cabinets
5120 - Wilson Art formica tops
5200 - Interior trim material
5208 - Interior trim doors
5250 - Interior trim labor
5250 - Wire shelving - material/ labor
5300 - Painting - interior labor
5300 - Painting -exterior labor
5302 - Painting - materials
5530-Tile labor
5530-Tile material
5540 - Vinyl flooring labor
5540 - Vinyl flooring materials
5610 - Hardware
5650 - Appliances

6000 - 6999 Completion and Inspection

6100 - Clean-up

6200 - Final grade

6400 - Concrete labor
6403 - Concrete materials
6600 - Landscaping

TOTAL SALES PRICE After closing fees and soft costs

$5,100.00
$3,884.08
$217.79
$380.00
$640.00

$1,857.62
$60.50
$2,790.00
$150.00
$382.64
$75.00
$2,750.00

$2,200.00
$2,242.50
$3,375.00
$2,205.00
$225.20
$876.00
$1,500.00
$304.00
$2,332.00
$2,332.00
$1,638.00
$652.00
$601.44
$1,099.00
$1,789.00
$737.06
$2,247.00

$150.00
$400.00
$1,290.00
$882.00
$365.80

$108,826.12

$145,000

$39,693.41

$8,065.76

$26,355.20

$3,087.80



Budget Cost Summary for Job template Plan C

Code Estimates
1000 - 1999 Preparation Preliminaries
1005 - Builders Risk $150.00
1006 - Appraisals $300.00
1010 - Building permit $1,376.93
1011 - Impact Fees $5,500.00
1110 - Blueprint $500.00
1112 - Clearing $3,000.00
1112 - Fill $3,000.00
1114 - Utilities During Construction $200.00
1115 - Borings $200.00
1121 - Surveys $350.00
1121 - Surveys - Foundation $400.00
1123 - Porta Potty $560.00
1124 - Dumpster - Hauling $466.00
1221 - Soil Engineering $77.00
1470 - Electric service $632.50
$16,712.43
2000 - 2999 Excavation and Foundation
2010 - Plumbing—ground $2,161.50
2010 - Plumbing—rough $2,161.50
2010 - Plumbing—trim $2,227.00
2012 - Plumbing—sewer $550.00
2013 - Plumbing—water $137.50
2101 - Concrete Material $3,700.00
2104 - Concrete Labor $2,578.00
2105 - Rebar and reinforcing steel $425.00
2300 - Termite protection $120.00
$14,060.50
3000 - 3999 Rough Structure
3100 - Structural steel $534.45
3105 - Nails $100.00
3110 - Lumber—1st package $2,705.00
3132 - Lumber— Roof Sheathing $386.00
3133 - Lumber— Truss Engineering $108.08
3134 - Lumber—Dry-in Package $2,245.00
3140 - Trusses $2,956.00
3150 - Miscellaneous lumber $500.00
3210 - Framing labor $7,000.00
3299 - Window $1,456.00
3299 - Window; tempered bathroom $128.34
3300 - Window $46.26
3403 - Exterior column installation $150.00
3404 - Exterior shutters $100.00

3405 - Exterior shutter installation $60.00



TOTAL COST:

3610 - HVAC

3810 - Electrical— labor

3810 - Electrical—rough materials
3910 - Electrical---trim

3912 - Soffit labor

3912 - Soffit materials

4000 - 4999 Full Enclosure
4100 - Roofing material
4102 - Roofing flashing
4150 - Roofing labor
4300 - Exterior door installation
4300 - Exterior rear door
4301 - Exterior rear door; laundry glass
4400 - Insulation

5000 - 5999 Finishing Trades
5100 - Drywall Material
5110 - Drywall Labor
5120 - Kitchen cabinets
5120 - Wilson Art formica tops
5200 - Interior trim material
5208 - Interior trim doors
5250 - Interior trim labor
5250 - Wire shelving - material/ labor
5300 - Painting - interior labor
5300 - Painting -exterior labor
5302 - Painting - materials
5530-Tile labor
5530-Tile material
5540 - Vinyl flooring labor
5540 - Vinyl flooring materials
5610 - Hardware
5650 - Appliances

6000 - 6999 Completion and Inspection

6100 - Clean-up

6200 - Final grade

6400 - Concrete labor
6403 - Concrete materials
6600 - Landscaping

TOTAL SALES PRICE After closing fees and soft costs

$8,460.00
$4,659.00
$3,480.00
$217.79
$359.00
$628.00

$1,587.00
$60.50
$2,670.00
$150.00
$382.64
$75.00
$2,750.00

$1,900.00
$1,960.00
$2,950.00
$2,060.00
$200.00
$876.00
$1,250.00
$304.00
$2,150.00
$2,150.00
$1,538.00
$652.00
$601.44
$950.00
$1,678.00
$737.06
$2,247.00

$150.00
$400.00
$1,290.00
$882.00
$365.80

$102,018.29

$135,000

$36,278.92

$7,675.14

$24,203.50

$3,087.80



Budget Cost Summary for Job template Plan D

Code Estimates
1000 - 1999 Preparation Preliminaries
1005 - Builders Risk $150.00
1006 - Appraisals $300.00
1010 - Building permit $1,200.00
1011 - Impact Fees $5,500.00
1110 - Blueprint $500.00
1112 - Clearing $3,000.00
1112 - Fill $3,000.00
1114 - Utilities During Construction $200.00
1115 - Borings $200.00
1121 - Surveys $350.00
1121 - Surveys - Foundation $400.00
1123 - Porta Potty $560.00
1124 - Dumpster - Hauling $466.00
1221 - Soil Engineering $77.00
1470 - Electric service $632.50
$16,535.50
2000 - 2999 Excavation and Foundation
2010 - Plumbing—ground $1,650.00
2010 - Plumbing—rough $1,650.00
2010 - Plumbing—trim $1,570.00
2012 - Plumbing—sewer $550.00
2013 - Plumbing—water $137.50
2101 - Concrete Material $3,200.00
2104 - Concrete Labor $2,400.00
2105 - Rebar and reinforcing steel $356.00
2300 - Termite protection $100.00
$11,613.50
3000 - 3999 Rough Structure
3100 - Structural steel $334.00
3105 - Nails $100.00
3110 - Lumber—1st package $2,456.00
3132 - Lumber— Roof Sheathing $350.00
3133 - Lumber— Truss Engineering $90.00
3134 - Lumber—Dry-in Package $1,969.00
3140 - Trusses $2,800.00
3150 - Miscellaneous lumber $500.00
3210 - Framing labor $6,500.00
3299 - Window $1,235.00
3299 - Window; tempered bathroom $128.34
3300 - Window $46.26
3403 - Exterior column installation $150.00
3404 - Exterior shutters $100.00
3405 - Exterior shutter installation $60.00

3610 - HVAC $8,250.00



TOTALS:

TOTAL SALES PRICE

3810 - Electrical— labor

3810 - Electrical—rough materials
3910 - Electrical---trim

3912 - Soffit labor

3912 - Soffit materials

4000 - 4999 Full Enclosure
4100 - Roofing material
4102 - Roofing flashing
4150 - Roofing labor
4300 - Exterior door installation
4300 - Exterior rear door
4301 - Exterior rear door; laundry glass
4400 - Insulation

5000 - 5999 Finishing Trades
5100 - Drywall Material
5110 - Drywall Labor
5120 - Kitchen cabinets
5120 - Wilson Art formica tops
5200 - Interior trim material
5208 - Interior trim doors
5250 - Interior trim labor
5250 - Wire shelving - material/ labor
5300 - Painting - interior labor
5300 - Painting -exterior labor
5302 - Painting - materials
5530-Tile labor
5530-Tile material
5540 - Vinyl flooring labor
5540 - Vinyl flooring materials
5610 - Hardware
5650 - Appliances

6000 - 6999 Completion and Inspection

6100 - Clean-up

6200 - Final grade

6400 - Concrete labor
6403 - Concrete materials
6600 - Landscaping

After closing fees and soft costs

$4,306.00
$3,250.00
$217.79
$356.00
$489.00

$1,457.00
$60.50
$2,569.00
$150.00
$382.64
$75.00
$2,650.00

$1,850.00
$1,956.00
$3,256.00
$2,100.00
$195.00
$678.00
$1,200.00
$245.00
$1,950.00
$1,950.00
$1,437.00
$652.00
$601.44
$876.00
$1,569.00
$640.00
$2,247.00

$0.00
$400.00
$1,290.00
$882.00
$365.80

$95,520.77

$125,000

$33,687.39

$7,344.14

$23,402.44

$2,937.80



Budget Cost Summary for Job template Plan E

Code Estimates
1000 - 1999 Preparation Preliminaries
1005 - Builders Risk $150.00
1006 - Appraisals $300.00
1010 - Building permit $1,200.00
1011 - Impact Fees $5,500.00
1110 - Blueprint $500.00
1112 - Clearing $3,000.00
1112 - Fill $3,000.00
1114 - Utilities During Construction $200.00
1115 - Borings $200.00
1121 - Surveys $350.00
1121 - Surveys - Foundation $400.00
1123 - Porta Potty $560.00
1124 - Dumpster - Hauling $466.00
1221 - Soil Engineering $77.00
1470 - Electric service $632.50
$16,535.50
2000 - 2999 Excavation and Foundation
2010 - Plumbing—ground $1,650.00
2010 - Plumbing—rough $1,650.00
2010 - Plumbing—trim $1,570.00
2012 - Plumbing—sewer $550.00
2013 - Plumbing—water $137.50
2101 - Concrete Material $3,100.00
2104 - Concrete Labor $2,345.00
2105 - Rebar and reinforcing steel $356.00
2300 - Termite protection $100.00
$11,458.50
3000 - 3999 Rough Structure
3100 - Structural steel $334.00
3105 - Nails $100.00
3110 - Lumber—1st package $2,356.00
3132 - Lumber— Roof Sheathing $350.00
3133 - Lumber— Truss Engineering $90.00
3134 - Lumber—Dry-in Package $1,778.00
3140 - Trusses $2,670.00
3150 - Miscellaneous lumber $500.00
3210 - Framing labor $6,000.00
3299 - Window $1,235.00
3299 - Window; tempered bathroom $128.34
3300 - Window $46.26
3403 - Exterior column installation $150.00
3404 - Exterior shutters $100.00
3405 - Exterior shutter installation $60.00

3610 - HVAC $8,250.00



TOTALS:

TOTAL SALES PRICE

3810 - Electrical— labor

3810 - Electrical—rough materials
3910 - Electrical---trim

3912 - Soffit labor

3912 - Soffit materials

4000 - 4999 Full Enclosure
4100 - Roofing material
4102 - Roofing flashing
4150 - Roofing labor
4300 - Exterior door installation
4300 - Exterior rear door
4301 - Exterior rear door; laundry glass
4400 - Insulation

5000 - 5999 Finishing Trades
5100 - Drywall Material
5110 - Drywall Labor
5120 - Kitchen cabinets
5120 - Wilson Art formica tops
5200 - Interior trim material
5208 - Interior trim doors
5250 - Interior trim labor
5250 - Wire shelving - material/ labor
5300 - Painting - interior labor
5300 - Painting -exterior labor
5302 - Painting - materials
5530-Tile labor
5530-Tile material
5540 - Vinyl flooring labor
5540 - Vinyl flooring materials
5610 - Hardware
5650 - Appliances

6000 - 6999 Completion and Inspection

6100 - Clean-up

6200 - Final grade

6400 - Concrete labor
6403 - Concrete materials
6600 - Landscaping

After closing fees and soft costs

$4,306.00
$3,250.00
$217.79
$356.00
$489.00

$1,457.00
$60.50
$2,569.00
$150.00
$382.64
$75.00
$2,650.00

$1,850.00
$1,956.00
$3,256.00
$2,100.00
$195.00
$678.00
$1,200.00
$245.00
$1,950.00
$1,950.00
$1,437.00
$652.00
$601.44
$876.00
$1,569.00
$640.00
$2,247.00

$0.00
$400.00
$1,290.00
$882.00
$365.80

$94,444.77

$122,000

$32,766.39

$7,344.14

$23,402.44

$2,937.80



Description

Fire assesment

Permit Fees

Plan review

State surcharge

Plans, engineering, wind loads

General engineering/SF

Clearing

Pad and final grade fill dirt for drainage
Porta Potty/ month

Final survey

3 Dumpster per unit

Soil engineering; compaction

Conduit for utilites; materials under slab
Plumbing; as per plan

Plumbing underground; sewer and water
Concrete 3000 psi w/ fiber

Concrete Environmental Fee

Concrete labor slab, w/ curbcut

Entry; porch 7' deep minimum 80% of front home
Interior footings

Saw control joints

Recess slab for shower; mud-set tile

#5 Rebar 5/8

Rebar chairs 2-bar; box

Vapor Barrier (6mil 100x20)

Termite Pretreat w/ certificate

3/4"x10" anchor bolts w/ washer-nuts
LSTA-24 strap MSTA24Z

Simpson 3 1/2"x10 Zmax concealed flange hang
Simpson HTT4 tension ties

Simpson titan bolts and screws

#200 nails as needed

1/2x4x8 foam header insulation board
All framing material as per code

3 1/2 Sill Seal 50' Roll (exterior top plates)
6x6 Pine PT column with bases

7/16 4x81-1/8" OSB Oversized; wall sheathing
7/16 4x8 OSB Roof sheathing w/ clips
1x10 Z flashing

5/4 textured hardie trim

7 1/2x12 cemplank w/ house wrap

Rhino wrap

Trusses; 4/12

MI 3540 series, white vinyl, low-e, windows, screens
HVAC****need details

200 amp Meter main for required service

Dining room light with drop chain

Doorbell

fan-42" and 52" fan w/ LED lighting

Hall lights- ceiling mount contractor grade

Porch light- ceiling mount

Porch light- wall mount

CATV and telephone wiring per plan

Vanity LED bulbs

GFl tamper & water resistant receptacles per plan
GFI tamper resistant receptacles per plans
Aluminum white soffit and facia

30 yr. Arch. Shingle material and labor

15 yr. year material warranty, 5 year workmanship
White drip edge and galv valley metal

3068 FBG exterior door, composite jamb w/ viewer
3068 FBG exterior door, composite jamb w/ glass
Wall and ceiling Icynene insulation

1/2 hardcoat walls; 5/8" fire-rated hardcoat ceilings
1/2" durock tile backer for tubs/ shower

Kitchen; vanity tops Wilsonart formica

2 1/4 primed colonial casing #366

3-1/4 Base colonial base #366

Interior 4 Panel doors w/ lever hardware

Marble sills; windows only, not transoms

Wire shelving; pantry and closets

Painting Labor: Exterior and interior

Exterior semi-gloss acrylic door paint

Exterior and interior tinted Valspar paint

Schluter trim for tile

Shower flooring and wall tile - material and labor
Grab bars

Exterior deadbolt door locks

Medicine cabinet- 14"x18"

Mini blinds- all windows

Mirrors

Bath hardware

30" Whirlpool range w/ hood

18+ CF Whirlpool refrigerator

Driveway and walkway as per plan

Plants and large pine bark mulch

Landscape sod for non-paved areas
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Proposed Project Staff

The staff on this project will be led by David Weiss, Alachua Habitat for Humanity Chief
Operating Officer, David is a licensed residential contractor in the State of Florida and
several other states. He is a graduate of Purdue University School of Building
Caonstruction and has designed, built, and deveioped property for over 2000 homes.

Other staff include {(resumes included)

Construction staff
o  Beth Kurtzman (full-time)
s Jim Chwat (full-time)
¢  Gene Drury (fuli-time)

Homeowner Services
e Kristine Thompson (full-time)
» 3Susan Meadows (part-time)

Development
» Scott Winzeler (full-time)

Neighborhood Revitalization
s Carla Lewis Miles (full-time)

Accounting
» Clarissa Ament (part-time)
+ |inda Sherman; CEQ of Centerpoint Consulting, L.L.C {outsaurced)

Staffing and Organization
« Jill Carter (pari-time)

Backing and full support from our Board of Directors



David H. Weiss

{239) 404-1221 + dhw49031 @gmail.com

Executive Summary

Florida snd Michigan Licensed Residentidl Builder and Real Estate Broker. A creative problem-solving
executive with an entreprencurial spirit.  Highly selfemotivated homebuilding  professional with extensive
cxperience locating, procuring, and developing through entitlements. Experienced at building high-volume new
home developments with a turn-key approach from land purchasing, through closing of the home on each lot. Adept
at developing and executing strategic objectives to meet agreed upon goals by maximizing return on the dotlar
through density, lot premiums, and value engineermng. Strong technology skills, excellent communication and
foilow-up, and reputation for the ability to lead a talented team of people to meet company goals in the residential
construction industry.

Chief Operating Officer November 20197 — Current
Alachua Habitat for Humanity — Cininesville, Florida

Provide lecadership of operations for the Alachua County affiliate, including managing the construction,
purchasing and estimating department. Work with staff to create all construction budgets and streamline the
building process. Implemented the use of the company-wide software to build more homes efficiently. Worked
closely with financial institutions and our accounting firm to maximize cash flow, even through the COVID-19
pandemic. Responsible for all budgetary decisions within the organization and working with our CODO to
increase donations and grants.

Viee President of Operations June 2017 — July
2019
Custom Builder. — Gainesville, Florida

Manage operations of the Gainesville/Ocala divisions, fncluding the constructton, purchasing and estimating
departinent, and the design studio. Create all construction budgets and responsible for profitable growth, from
streamlining the building process, locating and educating superior trade partners regarding company processes,
and lmiting vanances by completing “root cause™ analysis. Implemented purchase orders for trade partners
through the use of the company-wide software which increased profits by 3% in the first full year of operations.
Meet personally with all clients during the red-line to finalize plans, price all custom options, and change
orders. Set-up a second franchise in another city from the ground-up and worked a “turn-key” approach to
building homes to limit management time, reduce waste and increase efficiency

Estimating and Purchasing Manager/ Consaltant January 2015 — hune 2017
Large mid-size Builder - Gainesville, Florida

Responsible for all construction budgets, material lists, and variance investigation, and solutions, on an activity-
by-activity basis. Managed the purchasing and estimating departiment personnel staff’ members to increase
effective communication with trade partners. Worked along with the sales team to implernent new plan designs
and improve existing ones, Strategically planned for future company growth opportunities by analysis of
variances to creatively solve the issues moving forward,  Work with sales staff, design studio staff,
management leam, and clienis on pricing all options and change orders, including custom oplions in a cost-



effective, profitable, and efficient manner. Reorganized and streamlined the cstimating department in a time of
growth, by converting current THMS/ Marks System builder software from a “bid based” work order system, 1o
a purchase order system using specific cost breakdowns based on quantity take-offs for material and labar,

Residential Real Estate Broker August 2012 - January 2015
Premiere Plus Realty, Inc. -~ Naples, Florida

Sold over $3 million of new construction residential real estate, Extensive use of the mamix software system
through our broker. Located land parcels and estimated lot preparation costs for clients to build new homes,
including working extensively with environmental engineers on wetland mitigation issues inciuding
mitigation banking,

Majority Owner and Managing Partner Tanuary [995 — May 2012
Various Development Companics -- Indiana & Michigan

Located parcels of land for development, inciuding cost analysis, in two states, 5 counties, and 6
municipalities, Negotiated the purchase price, and take-down schedule of the land, and worked with
accounting team to produce complete development budget and projections package for investors and
lenders. Worked with civil engineers to design the neighborhood to maximize profit based on density, lots
per linear foot of road and common areas; then negotiated with government officials through entitlements.
Simultaneous with engineer and governmental approvals, worked with consultants to do a staristical
analysis of market demand based on demographics and MLS data, then used data-driven information to
produce value-cngineered, community-specific plans with the architectural team to ensure sales success.
Negotiated with governmental entities to approve a county-wide tax abatement for new developments.
Collaborated with Looney-Ricks-Kiss for vision and planning of 4 new riverfront redevelopment project.
As appropriale, negotisted sewer reimbursement agreements for future compensation in exchange for
extending the sewer and water to developments. Worked with the Vice President of Sales and her team, to
maximize profits through premium home site pricing options. List of development projocts upon request,

President CEO January 1995 — April 2011
Production Builder — Indiana & Michigan

Set goals and approved budgets for a $35 million dollar a year company. Leveraged my broad experience in all
phases of management and construction operations to oversee and manage the day to day operations of the
company’s growth. Realigned the company structure, resulting in increased profits, less staff, and decreased
build times. Secured over $15 million in financing working with a variety of public and private equity finns.
Spearheaded implementation of the FAST Builders System to initiate the use of a new purchase order system
for tighter controls, standardization, and managemient by exception, with an overall net margin increase of 5%
during the first two years, Oversaw market expansion inte Michigan and increased volume from less than 50
closings a year to more than 200 closings a year. Approved all base plan, option and upgrade pricing based on
the market and the competition, Created and designed an eight thousand square foot design studio, st margin
and sales goals, and hired the staff. Through site visits, feedback and budget cvaluations, conducted weekly
production and scheduling meetings to strategize on hitting our targets. Met with the management team weekly.
Led conversion to a formal “start package”™ for each new start including plans, estimate, color selections, lot
placement, and change orders and enforced a tme-frame for conatruction starts. Personally valug-engineered



all plans and options to reduce costs, and simplify building while still meeting quality goals. Collaborated
weekly or as needed with our sales manager to maximize our signing ratio and to increase model home and
internet traffic,

Education and Licensure

Purdue University — Bacheior of Science in Building Construction Management

Licensed residential builder in Florida - #CRC1328135

Licensed real estate broker in Florida - #BK3274796

A graduate of the Bob Schuliz New Homes Specialist Sales Manager and New Homes Specialist Sales
Consultant training. .

*  Former NAHB Builder 20 Club member and one of the “Top 400 Builders in the Country™

Software Experience: Microsoft Office Suite; FAST/Constellation, ARGOS; THMS/Marks; BuilderTrend,
Softplan CAD
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Scott Winzeler 1902 NW 11" Rd, Gaincsville, FL 32605
(352) 214-8773; swinzeler@alachuahabitat, org

Summary

Senior Level Officer with a background in Management, Real Estate, Resource Development
and Board Development.

. Budget creation and tracking non-profit operations

. Staff supervision, volunteer coordination, director coordination

. A top performer in managing projects in a team environment

i Ability to prioritize, manage time, and adapt with flexibility in fasi-paced, rapidly

changing and challenging environments
Experience

Alachua Habitat for Humanity, inc. Gainesville, FL 2010 — present
Not-for-profit housing ministry devoted to cradicating inadequate housing through the
construction and repair of safe, decent, affordable housing for those in need.

Chief Qutreach and Development Officer 2019 - present

. Pevelop financial and in-kind resources

Create and implement Development Plan

Coordinate Marketing

Recruit, recommend, and train members of the Board of Directors

Oversee grant applications

* 0 8

Execntive Director 2010 - 2019

. Supervise staff and volunteers including development, construction, mortgage servicing,
family partner services, volunteer coordination, and thrift store

L] Recruit, recommend, and train members of Board of Directors

* Track and recommend for approval annual budgets of = $2M

. Prioritize and time-manage projects

. Develop financial and in-kind resources

US Census Burcau ~ 2010 Census ~ Gainesville, FL 2009 - 2010
Assistant Manager for Admimstration
. Responsible for payroll and personnel processing for staffing that numbered more than

1,000 over a 1 3-county district.

Sage Software Healthcare, Inc. Alachua, F1. 1999 — 2009
Leading provider of Physictan Practice Management software in the U.S.

National Facilitics Manager

Project Manager for major relocation move of 160-employee R&D facility




. Planned, scheduled, facilitated $1.5M tenant improvement of 32,500 sq. ft. facility

. Executed $880K in savings over 5 years by negotiating change of facility

Scott Winzeler, page 2

. Saved $350K by convincing executive management to re-use existing walls and cabling
. Facilitated weekly meetings with stakeholders to keep project within timeline & budget
. Translated 1S specs from internal engincers into uscable network backbone data for GC
. Assured landlord that quality of decommissioning efforts at old facility met levet of
satisfaction

. Oversaw base rent disbursements of $6.2 million/year for 29 properties

. Facilitated closurc of 20 of 29 facilities, setting up remaining employees in home offices.
. Budgeted, approved and tracked facility expenditures totaling more than $1.4 M/year

Facilities Manager
. Managed staff for (5) buildings of over 88K total sq. ft.

. Tenant Rep in $3M construction of (2) 20K sq. ft. buildings incorporating tenant
requircments and negotiating with owner and GC for their inclusion

. Organized and orchestrated rehearsal of emergency preparedness plan

* Created access control, burglary, and firc alarm system procedures and effectively
communicated to all employees

* Developed daily procedures and checklists consolidating maintenance positions by 60%
b Regearched back-up power options for remote R&ID location; proposed, obtained

approvals, and purchased (2) campus-wide back-up generators securing vital electrical
connectivity saving downtime for 400+ employees during frequent outages

. Bid, interviewed, negotiated, selected & managed janitorial, landscaping, pest control,
and HVAC service contracts

SYDA Foundation South Fallsburg, NY 1979 - 1959
Not-for-profit organization that disseminates yoga philosophy and operates health, education and
sustainable development programs in India, Mexico, and the United States.

] Lead and directed finance office, conference organization and facilities carc

Education

. BA, Liberal Arts & Sciences, Bradley University, Peoria, 1L

. Principles and Techniques of Fandraising, IUPUI, Indianapolis, IN

. ACCES Leadership Training (Achieving Collaborative Capacity for Executive Success),
Natural Resources Leadership Institute, North Carolina State University

* Leading in a Quality Environment, Comell University

. Various Trainings: Racial Equity, Leadership, Dealing with Difficult People, Team

Building, Matrix Organization Theory and Implementation, Planning and Communication, Civil
Treatment in the Workplace.
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CLARISSA AMENT
BUSINESS ASSISTANT MANAGER

Profile

Highly motivated and dedicated
business professional with diverse
expetionce in providing axceptional
customer service, bookkeeping, and
HR managernent gkills. Effoctive
communicator with proven abllity to
gquickly build relationships with both
clients and business audiences,
Ciick learner with exceallant multi-
tasking skills and record of mastering
new technology. Known for the ability
to quickly adapt to challenging
situations and creative probiem-
solving abilities to addrass business
challenges

CONTACT
clarissa ament@amail com

hitps:Awww.linkedin. com/in/clarissa-
ament-mba-1h1633a9

352-682-2571
5801 NW 23" Terr Apt 3
Gainesville, FL 32653

EDUCATION
Santa Fe College
AS Marketing Management 2014

AA Business Administration 2014

BAS Crganizational Management/HR
2016

Saint Leo University

MBA Hr Concentration 2020

EXPERIENCE

BUSINESS MANAGER ASSISTANT,
ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
GAINESVILLE, FL. July 2017-Fresent

*

Performs non-profit bookkeeping functions, including
donation deposits, daily sales receipt entries, accounts
payable, cash flow monitoring, and payroll processing.

Assists and communicates with accounting team on
development and implementation of new accounting
systems, yearly audits, payrall, and 1099 compliance.

Assesses data and reviews invoices and company receipts
for accurate coding and reconciliation with statements,

Issues payments 10 vendors and suppliers while resolving
any vendor problems.

Assists with research and resclution of any financial
discrepancies

Orders and maintains office supplies whils serving as T and
office equipment point person to assist employees with [T
and equipment issues.

Assists with insurance renewals, financial applications, and
completes property tax exemption filings.

Supervises payroll, slectronic deposits and employes pay
adjustments.

Conducts employment verification and background
investigation to facilitale hiting process.

Creates, organizes and maintains employee personnel files,
Guldas new hires through orienfation and on-boarding.

Implements yearly employas training and compliance
requirements.

Conducts safety training meetings and documents safety
processes to reduce worker's comp claims.

Maintaing and administers employee benefits programs.

HEAD CASHIER, WINN DIXIE
WILLISTON, FL. Aug 1895-May 2001

» Hired, supervised, and taught employees use of
registers, stock merchandising, and satisfaction of
customer needs.

« (Created and managed cashier schedules and breaks,

*  Resolved issues with cash ragisters, card scanners
and printers.

« Counted and balanced cashier drawers, performed
bookkeeping, deposits, and monthly reconciliations.

»  Maintained ATM, cash registers, and office computer
equipment,

« Performed customer service, check cashing, Western
Unian transactions, and money arder processing,
tobacen, and loltery transactions,



Jill Carter
jearter@alachuahabitat.org
Volunteer Coordinator

Education
Bachelor’s Degree in Education, 1973
Qregon State University ~ Corvallis, Oregon

Speciat Education Degree Post-Graduate Work, 1975
Oregon State University - Corvallis, Oregon

Certifications & Licenses
Certified Construction Contract Document Specialist
24-hour Site Safety Certification

Experience

Atachua Habitat for Humanity 2014 — present
Volunteetr Coordinator

Scheduled volunteers for administrative office and construction jobsites. Responsible for responding to
volunteer inquiries. Help identify and establish database for tracking volunteers and donors.

CH2M Hili, FL 1984 - 2012
Contract Document Specialist

Responsible for maintaining firm’s master specification system. Construction document development
and review for firm’s water services department. Responsible for maintaining firm’s construction law

database covering all 50 states.

Caonstruction Site Specialist

Responsible for setting up construction office field trailers for construction projects on the East coast of
the United States. Responsibilities included establishing tempaorary facilities, office services, office
procedures, administrative support hiring and training.

Construction Services Administrator

Established new department to handle the Gainesville office’s construction services paperwork. Set up
system to receive and process shop drawings, pay reguests, clarifications, change orders and other
construction related paperwork.

Construction Cost Estimator .
Developed cost estimates as requested. Supported cost estimating department by obtaining material
guotes and performing quality checks on gquantity 1ake-offs,

CH2M Hili, OR 1979 - 1584

Qffice Services
Responsible for filling in for administrative personnel ouf on leave. Worked in administrative positions

that handled mail, document reproduction, and reception.

Construction Cost Estimator

Support construction cost estimating department by obtaining material quotes, manually running math
equations, and performing guality checks on math. Worked up to performing own cost estimates.
Participated in the conversion from manual cost estimating to computerized cost estimating.
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JAMES CHWAT

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE o o
ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY ~ Gainesville, FL
Assistant Construction Director Nov 2017 - present

Oversee and act as backup for the Materials Coordinator; direct their daily activities.

Consult with Construction Director weekly to determine upcoming tasks per site.

Schedule contractors; cost and purchase needed materials.

Coordinate with Volunteer Coordinator to schedule volunteers across multiple projects.

Assign and inform Site Supervisors of upcoming tasks.

Waork with Site Supervisors to receive project updates and needed materials.

Track and evaluate the progress of each site and resolve issues with Site Supervisors.

Coordinate inspections as directed.

Assist the Construction Director with day-to-day office operations as needed, including invaice

approval.

s From Mar 2020 to present: Carried out construction/building tasks on new homes, due to COVID
restrictions on volunteers.

Materials Coordinator  Jun 2010 - Nov 2017

¢ Organized and maintained tool room and trailer inventory.

Purchased materials and delivered to job site.

Set up materials at sites and ensured construction readiness.

Greet and sign in volunteers; conduct safety talks.

Coordinate with team feaders and Site Supervisors for daily activities,

s & & * & = & & @
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PRIOR WORK EXPERIENCE

Project Manager / Analyst

s  Managed multiple voice and data cabling projects for national accounts to time and budget, including
preparation of work orders, selecting subcontractors, ordering equipment, determining instaliation
timelines, and invoicing. Provided technical support to cabling contractors.

¢ Provided customer service over the telephone to resolve problems and/or address concerns.

Owner / General Manager

¢ Founded successful sole-proprietorship of a cabling infrastructure installation company.

« Managed all phases of company startup and development, including sales and marketing, cost analysis
and accounting, materials purchasing, inventory management, and subcontractor hiring.

s Provided connectivity for voice and data systems including: Local Area Network (LAN), Wide Area
Network (WAN), video, and wireless data applications.

Operations Manager

e Supervised instaliers and engineers in phone and network installation projects.

¢ Received and processed service requests to meet clients’ needs,

s Assisted sales department on design issues, cost analyses, and delivery of services,

+ Developed training program for all company technicians; evaluated the company’s current and future
neeads and geared training to meet these goals.

SPECIAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

s OS5HA 10 certified.

o Created Safety Data Sheet (5D5) and Best Practices reference booklets for use at each job site,

» Created job descriptions for Site Supervisors and Construction Assistants,

o Created standardized construction schedule (using Microsoft Project) for forecasting project timelines

and tracking project progress.
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Daorothy Elizabeth Kurtzman
111 Pine Tree Lane, Melrose, FL 32666
386-336-2474 - PrecisionBeth@@gmail.com

EDUCATION
1996 Santa Fe College Associate of Science,

Gainesville, FL Building Construction Technology
1990 DeKalb Techiical Institute Certificate,

Clarkesville, GA Computer Programming
LICENSES

State of Florida Departrment of Professional Regutation
Residential and Commercial Building Code Inspector - License #BN5273 (Inactive)

CONSTRUCTION WORK EXPERIENCE

1272017 — Present  Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
DIRECTOR OF CONSTRUCTION
Hire, schedule and supervise construction department staff. Schedule subcontractors and

verify quality of work and adherence to company standards. Check work for building
code compliance and schedule inspections. Train site supervisors to run construction
jobs on volunteer work days. Assemble documents needed for building permit packages
and submut for approval, Demonstrate strong leadership, orgamzation, management,
planning, communication, timeline creation and nmplementation and problem solving
skills. Demonstrate practical knowlcdge of construction methods, principles and
practices.

02/2016 — 12/2017 Rosald McDonald House Chanties of North Central Florida

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE MANAGER
Responsible for the maintenance of all systems and areas of the buildings and grounds.
Provide for maintenance repair work either directly or performed by subcontractors.
Schedule  subcontractors as needed. Maintain a current inventory system and
maintenance log. Identify upcoming maintenance, update and renovation needs. Conduct
fire extinguisher, emergency lighting and fire alarm system inspections and tests.
Supervise volunteer work details,

10/2007 -12/2017 Gainesville/Melrose FL
OWNER/MANAGLER - Precision Painting and Carmpentry LLC.

Providing painting, carpentry and maintenance services for private indusiry and for Barron
Residential Construction, Inc.

Providing sile supervision on volunteer work days, material take offs and carpentry
work for Alachua Habitat for Humanity. Supervised and/or did carpentry work on
many projects including new construction, rehabs and A Brush With Kindness
projects.



10/2005 - 09/2007 Builders Professtonal Services, Inc., Jacksonville FL
BUILDING CODE INSPECTIOR
Worked for a private provider mspection and plans examination company doing
residential and commercial building code inspections in Duval, St. Johns and Putnam
countics. Building inspections included foundation, slab, framing with special
attention to engineering requirements, roof and wall sheathing nail off, dry-in, roofing
and final,

05/2000 - 09/2005 Gainesville/Melrose, FL
SELF-EMPLOYED - Beth Kurtzman
Provided painting and carpentry services for private industry.

10/1998 — 04/2600 Woods Do It Best Lumber, Independence, K&
CONTRACTOR SALES

Worked in a large lumber/hardware store preparing estimates and orders for contractors. Also worked

stocking shelves, taking inventory, mixing paint and running a cash register when needed.

05/1997 - 09/1998 Independence, K8
SELF-EMPLOYED - Beth Kurtzman
Managed and built an owner/builder home and bam including drawing the plans,
permitting, material take off and ordering, scheduling and personally doing all
phases of work except subcontracting plumbing, electrical and HVAC. Also,
waorked on other carpentry and painting jobs.

01/1996 - 04/1997 Sterling Development and Realty, Inc., Bustis, FL
ESTIMATOR/BOOKKEEPER
Responsible for the running of the construction program "Timberline” including
estimating, job costing, information cntry, report production, accounts payable,
payroll, check register reconciliation and check production. Responsible for program
maintenance Including update installations, daily, weekly monthly and yearly
backups and month end, quarterly and year end procedures.

02/1994 - 31/1996 Carol Barron Construction, Gainesville, FL
FIELD SUPERVISOR
Worked in a hands on and supervisory capacity in almost all phases of construction

including plans interpretation, estimating, site worl, batter board placement, masonry,
floor and wall layout and framing, roof truss layout and placement, conventional roof
framing, metal and shingle roofing, metal strapping and fastener placement, {loor and
roof decking, wall sheathing, siding, window and door installation, interior and
exterior trim, cabinet installation, insulation, drywall, flooring, tiling and painting.
Also, deck and handicap ramp construction, pole barn construction, restoration and
minor electrical and plumbing,.
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Susan Meadows
smeadows@alachuahabitat.org
Family Service Coordinator

Education
Passed all required ¢lasses by Alachua Habitat for Humanity for 2 Qualified Loan Officer
Every employer had required training classes, some were specific to mortgage lender and others
were more general or were about banking

Antt Money Laundering Fair Lending

Bank Secrecy Act Flood Disaster Protection

Truth in Lending Fair Credit Reporting Act

Fair Housing Act Privacy for Customer Contact Personnel
Reg Z closed end credit Recogmizing and Preventing UDAAP
Reg £ Overview Reg B - ECOA

Reg 2 Right 10 Cancel Respa

Loan Originator Compliance Training Alice trainimg

Florida SAFE Act

There have been many more on line, webinar, and confetences

AA degree at Santa Fe Community College

Experience
9 months at Alachua Habitat for Humanity

Assist in the review of new applications for & Habitat Homeownership

Process files to confirm completeness and in compliance

Complete applications to assist clients in getting approved for Down Paymenl Assistines
Communicate with potential new clients and clients in process

Communicate with alt other paities involved as needed

Prepare docurnents as needed and for closing, this includes Loan Estimates, Disclosures and mortgages
Wark with Ltle company/attorney for a smooth closing

Request flood certification and other reporis us needed

Putf reports from loan servicing company,

Prepare files to go lo various parties, (loan servicer, Down Payment Assistance providers ete.
Prepare spreadshects needed in the Assel Leveraging process o report status/payments
Monitor of files afler closing, to make sure al! final documents are received

6 years Housing Program Coordinator

Process and close files for the Affordable Housing Program
Work with the SHIP Grant, CDBG Grant, and other funding Grants when available
Review, process Down Payment Assistance and Home Repair applications for completeness and
compliance
Work with the Fiscal department for the funding of Grants
Keep spreadshect up to date as needed for reporting purposes, which included the State
Prepare required document to secnre lien on property
Determine eligibility of clients for the programs applying for
Communicate with lenders, realtors, clicnts, as applicable for the various programs
Work with Non-Profits and other Agencies under the Home Repair program
Monitor files and spreadsheets for the completeness and compliance of documents

for each client and for the fanding



On a more recent basis worked on the Cares Act funding, monitoring the funding
updating spreadsheet for reporting 1o the State

13 vears as a morigave loan processor

Reviewed applications for mortgape loans

Reviewed files for completeness and compliance

Processed files from time of application to closing

Monitored files after closing,

Set up loan files in computer program

Communicated with Realtors, clicnts, appraisers, title companies, ete,

Worked with 3rd party lenders for the salability of mortgage loans

Worked processing, and disbursing construction loans

serviced loans atter closing - speaking with borrowers, preparing modifications,
preparing satisfactions,

reviewed title commitments,

process (iles 10 be refinanced or sokd

prepared document to insure buyers had clean vested title and lenders had
a vitlid lien on property and to issue final title policies

Commumicated with all parties on a file - Lenders, Realtors, buyers, sellers, cte.

Requested items such as payofts, corrective instruments, as needecd

Packaged files for the return to the Lender

Disbursed files to parties as applicable for payments due.

Presided over closings, reviewing documents with buyers and seller at closing prior to
signing, making sure they were signed, witnessed and notarized properly



Carla Lewis-Miles
Clewismiles@alachuahabitat.org
Neighborhood Revitalization Coordinator

fducation
A.S. Nursing

Certifications
Registered Medical Assistant

On Job Training

HFH Residential Construction
HFH Advocacy Series

HFH Quality of Life Framework
HFH Diversity and inclusion
HFH Policy Platforms

Experience

y‘

Y ¥ ¥

Home Repair Project Management

Policy Research, analysis, review, rewrite

Grant writing and compliance reporting

Advocate responsible for public support for or recommendation of a
particular causes and policies relating to Land Use, equal access to credit,
supply and preservation and creating communities of opportunity
Collaboration specialist responsible for implementing and managing an
organization's collaboration platform while improving outreach to clients

and residents and partners

et



Kristine M. Thompson

2837 N.W. 41st Avenue Gainesville, FL 32605 | C: (352) 682-0553 | kineweli59@yahoo.com

Professional Profile

Experienced Prograrm Director with 35years of unigue experience In managing non-profit agency operations and programs,
Extensive experience in program development, case management, partnering with community service agencies, supervising and
training staff. Strong communication ard presentation skills; able lo manage diverse teams, organize and implement change and
achieve parformance goals.

Skill Highlights

Strategic Planning & implementation

Qualified Loan Originator

Order appraisals, tile commitment and surveys
Execute sales agreement, loan application and closing disclosure
Policy and Procedurs Devetopment

Project Management & Budgets

Staff Management

Program Development &lmplementation
Excellent Leadership Skills

Property Acquisition

Construction & Critical Home Repair Experience
Strong Communications Skills

HUD certified Credit Counselor

Quality Assurance & Risk Management
Community Relations

Facilitation / Presentations

Agency Reporting

Case Management

Program Grant Compliance

Tracking data / Reports

Y Y Y P Y Y Y Y YYYYYYVYYYY

Experience

Director of Services

= | eadership role in agency's nine years Strategic planning, vision and implement changes.

+ Davelopment and Diree! programs pravided by agency.

- Establish apencies policy and procedures.

» Conduct staff performance reviews, to ensure skilled workforee.

+ Administers all areas of Program compliance to insure that agency is meeting grant reguiremenis.
» Agsiat in the development and oversight of arnual program budget and profit and loss analysis.

+ Responsible for applying for SHIP down payment assistance and Homeownership Poal Loans (HOP),



+ Provide commurily awareness presentalions and facililate program grientations.
= Responstbie for hiring, disciplinary action or termination of employess,
+ Collaborate with other non-profit agencies and managing community partner's refationships.
* Preparation of lending estimate and ¢losing disclosure for morigages.
+ Exceaded expectations of improverment of mortgage delinquencies
Case Management
« Lead Case Manager for State of Florida Weifare Transition Program with the oversight of 6 case managers.
« Conguct client intake and completion of needs asgsessment for diversified population,
« Acceptance of appiications for services; verifies income, runs criminal background checks and conducts hame visit
+ Assist and collaborate as a referral agency for client to inquire for alternative services.
"+ Monitor caseload to assure client is meeting program requirements.
+ Baing compassionate to client’s situation and working with them in & pasttive manaer,
Work History
Alachua Habitat for Humanity — 2011-Present
Family Service Director
Santa Fe Community Cotlege - 2003-2010
Lead Case Manger Welfare Transition Program
Big Brothers/Bly Sisters of Hillsdale County, Hillsdale, Michigan — 2003-2006
Director of Services
Hillsdale Gounty Senior Center - 1390-2003
Program Director/Case Management
Education
interlachen High Schoal. Intarlachen, Florida,

Santa Fe Community College

v



| certify the atta{:‘hgdjljg;ajigue andcorrectcopy of the Artic!es of Incorporation of
ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC., a corporation. orgarized under the
laws of the State. of Florida, filed onMay 29, 1986, as shown by the records of
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF R U
ALACHUA HABITAT FOR _HUMANITY, INCy-w nn 4oe 1-
ARTICLE 1 R :
NAME -

The name of this corpuration is ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY,
INC.
ARTICLE 11
STATEMENT OF CORPORATE NATURE
This is a nooprofit organization organized solely for
general charituble purposes pursuant to the Florida Corporations
Not for Procfit Law.
ARTICLE 111
PURPOSE
A. The specific and primary purposes for which this corpora-
tion is formed are to be a reistc” and affiliated organization to
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC., having its principal place of business
at 417 West Church Street, Americus, Georgia, 31709, and to assist
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, ING,, in fulfilling its stated purposes
which inc¢lude:
1. To implement the gﬂspgl of Jesus Christ throughout
the United States and around the world by working with economically
disadvantaged people to help them create a better human habitat

in which to live and work.
2, To cooperate with other charitable organizations,

through grants and otherwise, which are working to develop a
better habitat for economically disadvantaged people.

3. To communicate the gospel of Jesus Christ by means of
the spoken word, and by distribution of Bibles and other Christian
literature,

4, To receive, maintain and accepr, as assets of the
corporation, any property, whether resl, personal or mixed, by way
nf gift, vequest, devise or purchase, from any person, firm trust,
or corperation, to be held, administered and disposed of in
accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of this Articles of
fncorporation, but no gift, bequest, devise or purchase of any such




property shall be received or’made and zcceptud if it is
conditioned or limited in such mannar as shall require the
digposition of income or principal to any organization other than
a “charitable organization" or for any purpose other than
“charitable purposes™ within the respective meanings of such
quoted terxm as defined in Articles VIII and 1X, or which would
jeopardize the Federal Income Tax exemption of this corporation
pursuant to Section 501 (¢} (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1954, as now in force or acts in amendment thereof of substitution

thereof,
B. The general purposes for which this corporation is formed

are to operate exclusively for such charitable purposes as will
qualify Lt as an exempt organization under section 501 (c) (3) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, or corresponding provisions of
any subsequent federal tax laws, imcluding for such purpose, Che
making of distriburions to oxganizations which qualify as tax
exempt organizations under the Code,

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles,
this corporation shall pot carry om any other activities not
permitted to be carried on by (1) a corporation exempt from Fed-
eral Income tax under Section 501 {c) (3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 19546, or the corresponding provision of any future United
Srates Internal Revenue Law ox (2) a corporation contributions to
which are deductible under Section 170 (¢) (2) of the Internal
Revenue Cude of 1954 or any other corresponding provision of any
future United States Internal Revenue Law,

ARTICLE IV
POWERS

A. In connection with the foregoing purposes, the corporaticn
shiall be possesged, though not by way of limitation, of each ani
every power provided by the laws of the State of Florids, as they
now exist, or as they may hereafter exist, pertaining to
corporations not for profit.

B. The corporation shall hold and manage all property
received and accepted by it to be administered hereunder, and ghall
pay over, transfer, distribute, administer, or otherwise deal with
the principal and income thereof, in such manner or manners, and at

.
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‘such time or times, as in the judgment of the directors shall be
suited to carry out the foregoing purposes, including without
hereby limiting the generality of the foregoing language, the
acquisition by purcnase, gift, rental, or otherwise, and the
management, caraz, sale or lease, or other disposition of, real
property, aud interest im real property, including buildings and
other improvements therecn, the construction, reconstruccion,
repair and/or alteration of such buildings and other improvements,
the acquisition by purchase, gift, rental or otherwise, and the
preparation, sale, dispensation, lease, or otnex disposition of
equipment, supplies, and other personal property and iaterests in
personal property of whatsoever name or nature, and the retention
of the services (whether directly or through contract or other
arrangement with others), or employment of professional personnel,
managers, administrators, assistants, secretaries, and other
persons, agents, servant and employees, provided always, however,
that no part of the property held by -the corporation or the
earnings chereon, shall inure or be payable to or for the benefit
of any private shareholder or individual and no substantial part of
the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislationm, or
the participation in, or intervention (inciuding the publishing or
distributing of statements) in any political campaign on behalf of
any candidate for public office.

C. Only such powers shall be exercised as are in furtherance
of tax-exempt purposes of the corporation and as way be exercised
by an organization exempt under Section 501 (¢) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and its regulations as they now exist or as they may
hereafter be amended and by an organization contributiong to which
are deductible under Section 170 (¢} (2) of the Internal Revenue
Code as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.

ARTICLE V
MEMBERS

The members of this corporatiocn shall be its directors and
any other persons or class of persons that shall be specified in
the By-Laws of the corporation, as may be amended from time to time,
to be members of the corporation. The members of this corporation
shall have no right, title, or interest whatscever in its incone

n3-



property or assets, nov shall any portion of such income, property
or assets be distributed to any member on the dissolution or
winding up of *his cormoration. Members of this corporation shall
not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities or obligations
of the corporation and shall not be subject to any assets.
ARTICLE V1
TERM
This corporation shall have perpetual existence.
ARTICLE VII1
The names and residence address of the subscribeys to thege

Articles of Incorporation are as follows:

WARREN LARE 526 Rorthwest 9lst Street
Gainesville, Florida 32607

GLADYS LANE 526 Borthwest 9lst Street
Gainesville, Florida 32607

DEBRA VAR HISE 3642 Northwest 107th Terrace

Gainesville, Florida 32606
ARTICLE VIII
OFFICERS

whe affairs of this corporation shall be managed by the
following officers: President, one or wmore Vice Presidents,
Secretary and Treasurer, and such othex officers as may be
prescribed by the By-Laws. Bach officer shall be elected by the
Board of Directors at the annual meeting. The powers, dutles and
terms of office of all officers and method of filiing vacancies in
office shall be prescribed in the By-Laws. Fach officer shall
perform the dutiea of the office until a successor has been

elected.
The names of the officexs who are to serve until the fixst

clection under the By-Laws ave:
President - GCLADYS LANE

Vice President - Rev. Phil Kniss i
Secretary - Debra Van Hise

Treasurer - Warren Lane

ARTICLE IX
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed

alym



‘by a Board of Directors. The number of directors of the
corporation shall be not less than twelve nor more than thirty.

The directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the
corporation and shall serve for a term of three years and until the
qualification of thelr successors in office, The terms of direc-
tors shall be phased so that as nearly as possible, one-third of
the directors shall have terms expiring and shall be elected each

year .
The names and addresses cf the first members of the Board of |

Directors are as follows:

CORNELIUS H. BONNER, JR. 2007 Northwest 7th Terrace
Gainesville, FL 32609

DERNIS COLLETT 2510 Rorthwest S54th Terrace
Gainesville, FL 32606

TOM DOBSON 1049 Southwest llth Terrace
Gainesville, FL 32601

REBECCA FAY GEORGE 420 Northeast 19th Drive
Gainesvilie, FL 32601

PHIL KNISS 3725 Northwest 7th Place
Gainesville, FL 32607

ARNOLD NELSOR 8224 Northesst 77th Avenue
Gainesville, FL 32609

GLADYS LANE 526 Northwest 91st Street
Gainesville, FL 32607

WARREN LANE 526 Northwest 91st Street

‘ Gainesville, FL 32607

EUGENE MILLS 814 Southwest 5th Street
Gainesville, FL 32601

ELYIZABETH SPENCER P.0. Box 1702-52
Gainegville, FL 32602

MARY ANN SOMERA 431 Northwest 32d Avenue
Gainesvilie, FL 32609

DEBRA VAR HISE 1642 Northwest 107th Terrace
Gainesville, FL 32606

ARTICLE X
BY-LAWS

The By-Laws of the corporation are to be made, altered or
rescinded by the members of the Board of Directors at any aonual
meeting or special meeting by a two-thirds vote of the members
present.

G
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ARTICLE XI o
RLSIDENT AGENT AND PLACE OF BUSINESS
The initial resident agent of the corporation shgk] he it
- Warren E. Lane - :
and the ini:iial plece of business of the corporation RHall be:

526 Northwest 9lst Street
Gainesville, Florida 32607

ARTICLE XiI
AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
The Articles of Incorporation may be amended by the members
of the Board of Directors at any annual meeting or specilal meeting
by a two-thirds vote of the members present.
ARTICLE XIIY
DISPOSITION UPON DISSOLUTION
In the event of the dissolution of this corporation, or in
the event that it shall cease to carry out the objects and purposes
herein set forth, all the business, property and assets of the
corporation shall go and be distributed to such non-~profit,
charitable corporation, municipal corperation or corporsiions which
are described in the provisions of Section 501(c){(3) of The Internal
Revenue Code of 1954, as may be selected by the Board of Directors
of this corporation. In no way shall any of the assets cr pro-
perty of this corpovation, or proceeds of any of the assets or
property, in the eveant of dissolution, go or be distributed to
members, either for the reimbursement of any sums subscribed,
donated, or contributed by such mombers or for amy other purpose

WHINESS the hands and seal of the incorporators this
day of , 1986, '
bt ﬁoﬁf_—_(ﬁﬁm

(SEAL)

1 hereby accept the designation as Resid gent of the above
corporation.

Wa
526 Northwest 91st Street
Gainesvilile, Florida 32607

-
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STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ALACHUA

The foregoing instrument was acknow!edged before me this
il day of , 1986, by GLACYS LANE,

/%:‘ v ! A 47,
otary -

My Commission Expires “Motary Putie, Serte of Florida ot Lrge
My Commuasion Eagnres March 29, 190

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ALACHUA

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

Sl day of _q__(u._a_ 1986, by DEBRA VAN HISE.
A

otary -
Wotery Buttic, Stale of Flride " L
My Commission Expires: My Commanian Eapres Yarch 19, 1apt

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ALACHUA

The foreguizg instrument was acknowledged beforxe me this

;5'l_-:f day of , 1966, by WARREN LANE. Z

LY

otary rubly
My Commission EXPITES: yo s st of Faide ot Laegs
My Compiston Kspires Sarth 29, [P68

Lilifﬂ »
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Kattell and Company, P.L.
Certified Public Accountants Serving the Nonprofit Comnuenily
BOR-B NW 16" Avenue  Gainasville, Florida 3260F  352-305-6565 www.kattell.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Board of Dircctors,
Alachua Habttat for Humanity, Inc,

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc. (the
Corporation), which comprise the statemenis of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the
related statements of activitics, functional expenses, and cash flows lor the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Muanagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.,

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial gtatements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
firancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auwditors' Responsibiliry.

Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on these financial staterments based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those
standards require that we plan and perforrn the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staterments are free from material misstatement.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staternents. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of rmaterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. Tn making thoge
risk assessments, the auditor considers mternal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to degign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express o such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting esthmates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion,

Opindon.

It our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present falily, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for

the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Kattell and Company, P.L.

December 12, 2019
Gainesville, Florida

“Not evervthing that counts can be counted, and not everything that can be counted counts.”
~Albert Einstein




Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

2018

§ 294,333
24,256
36,000

95,033
34,890
43,952

9,745
407,519
1,803,900
801,072
248,600

$ 3,799,300

§ 135,000
56,599
60,071

8,751
44,718
16,250

321,389

3,317,868
160,043

3,477,911

2019
Assels

Cash £ 247911
Investments 115,557
Inventory 38,000
Receivables:

Grants and Contributions 92,582

Other 49,497
Depasits — AmeriNat 51,515
Prepaid Expenses 9.061
Construction in Progress 585,964
Mortgage Notes Receivable, Net 1617189
Property and Equipment, Net 782,787
Land Held for Futuee Use 255,921
Total Assels $ 3,845,984

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilitics:

Line of Credit § 134,606

Accounts Payable 45,601

Accrued Payroll Expenses 54,838

Deposits Held 12,001

Mortgage Escraw 51,515

Note Payable 16,250
Total Liabilities 314,811
Net Assets:

‘Without Donor Restrictions 3,524,079

With Danor Restrictions 7,094
Total Net Assefs 3,531,173
Total Liabilities and Net Assets § 3 845 084

$ 3,799,300

See accompanying notes.
-2



Statement of Activitics

For the Year Ended June 30, 20619
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

Support and Revenue:
Contributions:
Individuals
Businesses and Foundations
Churches
Women Bwld
Signature Event
In Kind
Other
Interest Income - Mortgages
Government Grants
CCTCP (Tax Credit Program)
Sales - Resale Center
Sale of Homes
Other Support and Revenue
Satistaction of Program
Resirictions

Total Support and Revenue
Expenses:
Progran:
ReStore
Home Ownership
Management and General
Fundraising
Total Expenses
Excess Revenues over/(under) Expenses
Gains on Sale of Assets
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See accompanying notes.

Without With
Donor Donor
Restriction Restriction Tatal
§ 101,795 b s 101,795
218,659 1,250 219,909
13,923 - 13,923
- 7,640 7,640
30,832 — 10,832
117,624 - 117.624
12 - 12
91,133 - a1,133
307,609 - 307,609
187,000 - 187,000
458,419 - 438 419
719,372 ~— 719,372
57,958 - 57,958
161,839 (161,83%{) .
2,466,175 {152,949) 2,313,226
382,808 - 382,808
1,684,189 - 1,684,189
177,483 - 177,483
100,337 - 100,337
2.344.817 - 2,344,817
121,358 (152,949) {31,591)
VVVVVV £4,853 - 84,853
206,211 {152,949) 53,262
3,317,808 160,043 3477911
5 3,524,079 b 7,094 $ 3,531,173

e,

=
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Statement of Activitics

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
Alackua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

Support and Revenue:
Contributions:
Individuals
Businesses and Foundations
Churches
Women Build
Signature Event
In Kind
Other
Interest Income - Mortgages
Governmnent Grands
CCTCP (Tax Credit Program}
Sales — Resale Center
Sale of Homes
Other Support and Revenuc
Satisfaction of Program
Restrictions

Total Support and Revenue
Expenses:
Program:
ReStore
Haowne Ownership
Management and General
Fundraising
Total Expenses
Excess Revenues over/(under) Expenses
Gain on Sale of Assets
Chanyge in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See accompanying notes.

Without With
Donor Donor
LRestriction Restriction Total

& 105,714 5 1,000 F 106,714
131,662 §4.967 216,629
15,978 9,005 24,083
e 26,935 26,935
45205 — 45,205
175,486 - 175,486
4,036 - 4,036
80,922 o 280,922
74,641 - 74,641
249,000 - 249,000
437,331 - 437,331
677,767 - 671,767
94,702 - 94,702
123,268 (123,268} -
2,215,712 (1,361) 2,214,351
369,292 - 369,292
1,381,364 - 1,381,364
186,025 - 156,025
113,973 - 113,973
2,050,654 - 2,050,654
165,058 (1,361) 163,697
78,735 = 78,735
243,793 (1,361) 242,432
3,074,075 161,404 3,235479
$ 3,317,868 $ 160,043 5 3,477,911

o4 -
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc,

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in Net Asscts
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Donated Non-cash Assets
Depreciation
Gain on Repossession
Net Investment Income Reinvested
Changes in:
Inventory - Resale Center
Receivables
Deposits - AmeriNational
Prepaid Expenses
Construction in Progress
Mortgage Notes Receivable
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Deposits and Mortgage Escrow

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flowg From Investing Activities:
Securities Purchased
Securities Sold
Purchases of Fixed Assots
Purchase of Land Held for Futuee Use
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activitics:
Payments on Ling of Credit
Boirowings Under Line of Credit
Proceeds from Note Payable
Proceeds from Sale of Mortgages Receivable

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activitles
Net Change in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

Supplemental Disclosures

Cash Patd for Interest

Value of Land Held for Future Use transfarred to
Construction in Progress

Value of Foreelosed Mortgage added to Construction in
Progress

2019 2018
§ 53,262 $ 242,432
(16,000) (54,500)
38,527 18,201
- (39,368
(1,555) (3,554)
(2,000) (6,000)
(12,156) (95,100)
(1,563) 4316
684 (2,823)
(123,079) (79,222)
(345,044 ) (297,534)
(16,231) 22,659
10,047 (4,352)
(421,108) (274,845)
(349,746 -
260,000 265,000
{20,242) (34,631)
_ (46,087) (35.100)
(156,675) 195,268
(160,394} (145,604)
160,000 140,604
— 16,250
531,755 157,932
531,361 169,182
(46,422) 89,606
294,333 204,727
$ 247,911 $ 294,333
$ 4598 $ 7519
§ 55366 $ 106,000
$ w % 65,000

See accompanying notes.



Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inec.

Salavies and Benefits

Advertising

Auntomobile Expenscs

Supplies & Gayvipment

Bank/Credit Card/Other Fees

Repairs & Maintenance

Professional Associations

Occupancy and Insurance

Cost of Homes Suld

Cost of Home Repairs

Cost of Neighborhood Development

Payments to Affiliates

Profiessional Services

Mortgage Servicing Fees

Other Progran

Event

Staft and Volunteer Apprectation

Staff Training and Development

Printing & Postage

Mecting Expenses

Interest BExpense

Diepreciation

Cirants/Assistance to Individuals.
Mortgage Discount

Other

Fotal Expenses

Program Services  Supporting Activities

Management
Home and
ReStore Ownership Gcneral Fundraiging Total
F 277682 % 354810 5 77,134 § 61,707 % 171339
[,957 -- 8,219 e 10,176
13,660 14,707 3197 2,558 34,122
6,008 6,883 1,496 1,197 15,584
11,181 nm - - 11,181
4,240 19,699 2,028 1,623 27,590
285 11,432 -- e 11,717
39,033 20,497 4,456 3,564 67,550
n 639,893 - -- 659,693
- 261,998 -- - 261,998
- 29,854 . - 29,854
wa - 8,474 - 8.474
wa - 59,402 - 59,402
- 8,039 - - 8,039
4,121 41,003 ua o 45,124
ws s - 2531 25331
o - 5,572 - 5,572
1,534 7,504 1,631 1,305 11,974
1,429 3,591 781 624 6,425
14 1,606 - - 1,620
- 4 598 -- - 4,598
19,099 3,969 3,031 2,478 38,527
- 222,821 - - 222821
2,565 1.279 2,062 e 5,906

% 382808 % 1,684,180 § 177483 § 100,337

$ 2,344,817

See accompanying notes,
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Statement of Functional Expenses

Salaries and Benefits

Advertising

Autormabile Txpenses

Supplies & Equipment

Bank/Credit Card/Other Fees

Repairs & Maintenance

Professional Associations

Qecupancy and Insurance

Cost of Homes Seld

Cost of Home Repairs

Payments to Afitliates

Protessional Services

Mortgage Servicing Fees

Other Program

Bvent

Staff and Volunteer Appreciation

Staff Training and Develomment,

Printing & Postage

Meeting Bxpenses

Interest Expense

Depreciation

Grants/Assistance to Individuals-
Martgage Discount

Miscetlancous

Total Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

Program Services

Supporting Activities

Management
Home and

ReStore Ownership General  Tundraising Total
F255.169 § 291,622 $116642 & 63614 3 720054
399 = 994 - 1,393
16,130 7,555 3.022 1,707 28,414
4,537 15,884 6,353 3,590 30,364
14,055 -- 2,941 - 16,996
13,171 10,334 828 nn 21,337
3,050 12,108 - - 15,158
34 486 24,691 4876 5,581 14,634
- 587,125 us - 587,125
- 60,064 “ - 60,064
- - 7,270 - 7,770
- - 19,967 - 19,967
-- 11,322 us - 11,322
900 30,053 m 50,953
e - -- 32,608 32,668
1,308 - 7076 - B384
2,799 2,935 1,182 GGE 7.604
1,300 6,923 2,769 1,5G5 12,557
e 2,067 -- - 2,007
- 7.519 -- - 1,519
18,420 12,635 4,560 2,580 38,201
- 276,485 -- ue 276483
6,568 2,018 2,532 v LR
§ 369,292 % 1,381,364 5 I86,025 113973  £2.050,654

See accompanying notes.

-7-

£



Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
Alachua Habital for Humanity, Inc. (the Corporation), a not-for-profit corporation, provides affordable

housing to low-income families in the Alachua County area, Qualified families have a demonstrated
need, an ability to repay an interest-free mortgage, and a willingness to volunteer 400 hours of their time,

Income Taxcs

The Corporation is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
does not earn any untelated business income. Therefore, no provision for income taxes is reflected in the
accompanying financial statements. In addition, the Corporation qualifies for the charitable contributions
deduction and has been classified by the Internal Revenue Service as an organization that is not a private
foundation. The Corporation is operated exclusively for charitable, scientific and educational purposes.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and are
presented using accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
labilities and disclosure of contingent agsets and liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from
those estimates,

The Corporation considers all checking and savings accounts to be cash,  The Corporation had
approximately $0 and 580,990 of deposits in excess of amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively.

Investments

All investment securities have readily determinable fair values and are reported at fair value. Fair value is
determined by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and other relevant
information gencrated by market transactions (also known as Level T of the fair value hierarchy.)

Inventory — Resale Center
All items sold in the resale center are donated to the Corporation. Donated iterns are valued at their fuir

value at the time of contribution and are typically sold or otherwise disposed of shortly after being
donated.

Construction in Progress
Construction in progress consists of the accumnulated costs of construction of single-family houses.

Accumnulated costs may include goods or services purchased or the fair value of goods or services
received through donation. The single-family homes will be sold to qualified persons as part of the
Corporation’s home ownership program.

Land Held for Future Usc

Land held for future use is comprised of purchased and contributed lots held for future development or
sale to qualified persons. Additionally, land held for future use represents development costs incurred for
infrastructure for the Celebration Oaks residential subdivision in Alachua County. The lots owned by the
Corporation will be used to build single-family homes.




Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, Plant and Eguipment
Property, plant and equipment are valued at cost when purchased, or at fair value at the time of donation,

Depreciation of property and equipment 13 computed over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets on the straipht-line basis. Estimated useful lives range from three to ten years for cquipment and
forty years for buildings. The Corporation's policy is to capitalize items with a cost or estimated fair
value greater than $1,000,

Management reviews property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Irapaitment is
measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the sum of expected future cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest charges) resulting from use of the asset and its eventual disposition.

Advertising

The Corporation expenses advertising costs as they are incurred,

Concentration

The Corporation relies heavily on donations from individuals, churches, and organizations from the North

Central Florida area.

Net Asscts
The Corporation's net assets, the excess of assets over liabilities, are reported in two classes that are based

upon existence or absence of restrictions on use that are imposed by its donors, as follows:
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions arc available for use in general operations. The only limits of
these net asgets are the broad limits resulting from the nature of the organization,

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions are restricted by a donot to be used for a particular purpose or in a
particular future period. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will
be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. When a donor's
restriction is satisfied, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial statements by
reclassifying the net assets from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions. Contributions are recognized as revenue when they are received or unconditionally
pledged. Contributions are recorded at their estimated fair values. The Corporation reports gifts of cash
and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets, When a donor restriction expires, that is when a stipulated time restriction ¢nds or
purpose restriction is accomplished, donor-restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported as net assets relcased from restrictions. However, contributions that are restricted
by a donot are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the
same fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.

Contributed Services. Contributions of services are recognized when received if the services (a) create or
enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are provided by individuals posscssing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,



Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Hemanity, Inc.
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 'OLICIES {concluded)

Revenue Recognition {continued)

Crovernment Grants — Government grants cansist primarily of cost reimbursement contracts, Revenues
are recognized when the Corporation incurs allowable costs. The Corporation reports grants receivable to
the extent that funding is reccived after allowable costs are incurred.

Donated Materials — Donated materials and equipment are reflected as contributions in the accompanying
financial statements at their estimated fair values at date of receipt.

Inventory - Resale Center — The Corporation operates a thrift shop where donated houschold furniture,
building supplies and other goods are held for resale. Items donated are reflected as resale center gales in
the statement of activities or as inventory on the statement of financial position.

Imputed Interest on Mortgages — The Corporation sells the homes it builds and takes a mortgage note
receivable with zero percent interest.  The Corporation impuies intercst at a risk adjusted rate by
computing a disconnt on the note when signed. As payments are received, a portion of the payment is
credited to interest income using the effective interest method of discount amortization.

Functional Expenses

Expenses are summarized on a functional basis. Direct expenses are assigned to the various functional
categories based on the purpose achieved by each expense. Salaries and related expenses are distnibuted
based on the estimated portion of time spent by respective employees for each function. All other indirect
expenses are allocated among program and supporting service classifications on the same basis as staff
time. The following is a summary description of functional expense categories:

ReStore — The Corporation owns and operates a resale store which provides discounted building
supplies and furnishings to low income families to enable them to better maintain their homes.
This operation provides a vehicle for accepting, distributing and selling donated goods. Also,
revenue from the store generates financial resources for funding programs.

Home Ownership — The Corporation builds new homes that are made available for sale fo
eligible home buyers. The Corporation Facilitates a loan program that is available to eligible
home buyers to firance the purchase of their home. In addition, the Corporation assists
hormeowners with home repairs,

Management and General ~ These expenses include the costs of operations which do not relate
specifically to other functional categories, but benefit 21l functions indirectly.

Fundraising — These expenses include the costs of fundraising etforts.

Changpe in Accounting Standards

The Organization implemented Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No.
2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, in the current year, applying the
changes retrospectively, The new standards changed the following aspects of these financial statements:

¢ The permanent and temporarily restricted net asset classes were combined and have been
renamed net assets with donor restrictions.

» The unrestricted net asset class has been renaned net assets without donor restrictions.

» The financial statements include a note about availability and liquidity of financial assets. (See
Note 2)

» This change had no effect on total net assets at June 30, 2018,

-10 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

NOTE 2 -LIQUIDITY AND AVAILARILITY

The Corporation’s financial assets available within one year of the date of the statement of financial
position for general expenditure are as follows,

2019 2018

Financial Assets:

Cash 5 246,377 ¥ 294,333

Investments 115,557 24,256

Receivables 142,374 129,923

Deposits - AmeriNat 51,220 43,652

Mortgage Notes Receivable L 1617188 1,803,500
‘Total Financial Assets 2172,716 2,296,364
Not available for general expenditure;

Mortgage Notes Receivable due after one year {1,458,67%) (1,632,041
Amounts available for general expenditure within one year 5 714,037 5 664,321

The Corporation has structured its financial assets to be available as its gencral expenditures and
liabilities come due.

From time to time, the Corporation will sell a portion of its mortgage portfolio to finance housing
projects,  The funds received in these sales are invested in highly liquid marketable securities and are
drawn down as needed. Sec Note 6. The Corporation has no other policy or practice regarding
investiment of financial assets in excess of immediate cash needs.

The Corporation has entered into a line of credit agreement with a bank to finance certain construction
cosis on new homes, Sce Note 8

NOTE 3 - MORTGAGE ESCROW DEPOSITS

The Corporation contracts with AmeriNat to service its mortgages. Under the agreement, AmeriNat
collects mortgage payments and administers the escrow funds on behalf of the Corporation. The amount
held by AmeriNat is reported as Deposits — AmeriNat on the Statements of Financial Position. The
amount held on behalf of mortgagors is reported as Mortgage Escrow on the Statements of Financial
Position.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Cotporation’s home ownership program includes the acquisition and development of propertics. The
following represents the Corporation’s investment in these properties:

2019 2018
Construction in Progress $ 585964 § 407519
Purchased Land Parcels $ 128621 % BE000
Donated Land Parcels 127,300 159700
Total Land Held for Future Use § 255921 F 248,600

Construction in Progress ~ Includes the construction costs of fourteen properties at June 30, 2019, and
twelve properties at June 30, 2018, '

-1] -
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 20138
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (concluded

FPurchased Land — Includes the costs incurred for purchases of parcels of land since July 1, 2013. The
carrying values for parcels of land purchased prior to July 1, 2013, arc based on an estimate of fair value
afler a one~time impairment adjustinent.

Donated Land - Includes the fair market value of parcels donated since July 1, 2013, as measured on the
date of donation. The carrying values of parcels of land donated prior to July 1, 2013, arc based on an
estimate of fair value afler 4 one-time impairment adjustment.

NOTE 5§ ~-MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Corporation provides interest-free mortgage loans on single-family houses that are sold to qualified
buyers as part of the Home Ownership program. When the purchase of a home is closed, the Corporation
computes the net present vafue of the expected future cash flows of the loan. The difference between the
face amount of the loan and the net present value is recorded as a discount and as Grants/Assistance to
Individuals — Mortgage Discount expense.

These loans are discounted by imputing a rate of interest that is estimated to be the prevailing market rate
of interest at the time the loan 1s closed. Discounts are amortized using the effective interest method over
the term of the mortgages. Discount amortization is reported as Interest Income in the Statement of
Activities.

The majority of the mortgages have an original maturity of twenty to thirty years, although some are
longer. No allowance for uncollectible accounts is considered necessary due to collateralization of loans
by single-family houses. Management estimates that the value of the houses is sufficient to adequately
collateralize the reccivables, For this reason, the amount and impact of impaired loans s not considered
material to the financial statements. Future assessments of the allowance for uncollectable loans, if any,
is dependent on the real estate scctor of Alachua County, Florida.

In addition, at the closing date, homebuyers may sign a second mortgage with the Corporation for the
difference between the market value and the purchase price, if any. (The Corporation sells its homes at its
cost, notl to excecd market value)) As a result, the purchase price is always equal to or less than market
value, The second mortgage is forgiven in a variety of ways, including either on a periodic basis over a
period of time, or at the conclusion of the first mortgage. If the homeowner sells the home during the
period the second mortgage is being forgiven, the homeowner must pay the difference between the
original amount of the second mortgage and the portion forgiven to the Cosporation, The Corporation
does not report revenue and a related asset at the time of sale since historical data indicates that the
likelihood of future receipts from these second mortgages is remote.

Mortgage notes receivable and the related discounts are as follows:

2019 2018
Mortgape notes receivable F 2498955 $ 2,781,578
Disoounts ranging from 2.3% to 6.5% o (8B1,767) (977,678)
Net $ 1,617,188 3 1,803,900

212 -



Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2008
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
NOTE 5 - MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLE (concluded}

Changes i the discount are as Tollows:

2019 2018
IHscount, Beginning of Year 3 977,678 $ 891,748
Priscount on Homes Sold 222,821 276,485
Discount on Mortgages Sold {227,599) (87.,277)
Discount on Mortgages for Homes repossessed -~ {22,336)
Amortization - Interest {21,133 {80,922)
biscount, End of Year % 881,767 $ 977.078

Mortgages receivable are expected to be received ag follows:

2019 2018
Less than 1 year $ 164,849 & 178,731
I to 5 years 762,913 833,290
6 to 10 years 585,850 671,383
11 to 15 years 441,475 202,078
16 Lo 20 years 343,990 365,311
21 to 25 years 162,944 202,192
25 to 30 years 21,574 --
31 to 35 years 15,360 28,593
Total ¥ 2,498,955 $2,781,578

The Corporation has entered inte arrangements to transfer certain mortgages to various financial
institutions. These transfers are accounted for as sales; however, the Corporation continues to collect the
payments on the mortgages and to remit those payments to the respeetive financial institutions. (See Note
12 for information on current year sales, if any.) The face value of the mortgages transferred were
$1,823,347 and §1,221,877 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 6 ~- INVESTMENTS

Investments are held in an Edward Jones investment account and consist of the following:

2019 2018
Mouey Market § 5,559 5 24,256
Certificates of Dieposit __ 100,604 —
Totat Investnients 5 105,563 5 24,256
NOTE 7 -PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following:
2019 2018
Land 5 45,000 5 45,000
Buildings and Improvements 989,999 989,999
Fumniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 36,241 55,635
Vehicle 35,837 16,203
Accumulated Depreciation (344,290} {305,763)
Net Property and Equipment 5 782,787 $ 801,072

~13 -



Notes to Financial Statements
June 3, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, In¢.

NOTE 8 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Corporation entered mto a line of credit agreement with a bank for a maximum amouni of $400,000,
Monthly payments of interest are due at a fixed interest rate of 5%. The line of credit expired April 25,
2019, and was rencwed with an unspecified maturity date. The hine of credit is collateralized by the
Corporation’s mortgage notes receivable.

NOTE 9 - NOTE PAYABLE

Habitat for Humanity International, Ine. (HFHI) and the Corporation entered into a grant agreement
whereby HFHI advanced the Corporation grant funds, $16,250 of which is to be repaid. The note is non-
interest bearing and calls for monthly payments of $338 beginning January 1, 2020, Future debt service

follows:
Amounts due in fiscal year ending:

June 30, 2019 5 --
June 30, 2020 2,028
June 30, 2021 4,056
fume 30, 2022 4,056
June 30, 2023 4,036
June 30, 2024 o 2,034
Total Note Payable % 16,250

NOTE 10 - DEPOSITS HEED
The Corporation collects deposits which are applied towards future home purchases. At June 30, 2019
and 2018, the Corporation hetd $9,251 and $8,751, respectively.

NOTE 11 -HOME REPAIRS

Home repairs were comprised of the following for the years ended June 30:

2019 2018
Critical Home Repairs 14 8
A Brush with Kindness 0 4
Tutal Projects 14 12

NOTE 12 - HOMES SALES

The Corporation sold five homes during the year ended June 30, 2019, and five during the year ended
June 30, 2018, A comparison of sales and cost of sales related to these transactions follows:

2019 2018
Home Sales Revenues § 719,372 3 677,767
Cost of Home Sales {659,893) (587,123)
Net Gain on Bome Sales § 49479 5 98,642

Sales revenues were comprised of the following:

2019 2018
Mortgage Loans ¥ 571,950 5 621,253
HOME grants 20,000 10,000
SHIP DPA grants 18,000 40,000
Cagh - Buyer 109,422 6,514
Tatal Proceeds § 719372 £ 677,767

-14-
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Alachua Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
NOTE 13 - GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS

Amounts reported as Gain on Sale of Assets consist of the following:

2019 2018
Mortgage Loans Sold — Face Value b (686,462) § (205,841)
Mortgage Loans Sold — Discount 227,599 87,277
Mortgage Loans Sold — Sales Proceeds 531,755 157,931
Net Gain on Sale of Mortgage Loans 72,892 39,367
Net Gain on Repossession 11,961 39,368
Net Gain on Sale of Assets $ 84,853 $ 78,735

NOTE 14 - DONATED SERVICES

The Corporation received donated services that met the criteria for recognition. These amounted to
$30,882 and $68,147 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and these amounts are
included in In-kind Contributions Revenue in the Statement of Activities.

In addition, the Corporation received donated services that did not meet the criteria for recognition. A
total of 17,729 hours in 2019 and 19,236 hours in 2018 of donated services not recognized were received
that supported program services, including volunteering in the ReStore and construction of homes. The
Corporation also received 284 hours in 2019 and 411 hours in 2018 of volunteer time from its board
members. These donations supported the general and administrative activities of the Corporation. At
$24.04 per hour, this amounts to $436,086 in 2019, and at $23.33 per hour, this amounts to $458,365 in
2018 of additional contributions and expenses. These hourly rates are the estimated value per hour of
volunteer time for Florida as estimated by Independent Sector, For more information on the estimated
value per hour see www.independentsector.org/volunteer time.

NOTE 15-NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTION

Net assets with donor restriction consist of donations received where the donors have restricted the gifts
for the construction costs of a particular house. These amounts are purpose restricted and are expected to
be used by the Corporation in the subsequent year.

NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation made contributions as a tithe of $8,474 and $7,270 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, to
Habitat for Humanity International, a worldwide organization with whom the Corporation is affiliated.

The Corporation received grants of $76,275 in 2019 and $61,383 in 2018 from affiliated agencies.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Corporation has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through
December 12, 2019 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

-15-
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MASTER FARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This MASTER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (the "Agrecrnemt"), dated as of
Seplember 25, 2019 (the "Effective Date"), between ALACHUA HARITAT FOR HUMANITY,
INC. 2 Florida non-profit corporation (“Habitat”) and CENTERSTATE BANK, N.A. (*Participant),

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Habitat originates, underwrites, closes, owns and services certain resideatial reat
home mortgages (collectively, the "Loans");

WHEREAS, Habitat desires to sell, assign, and transfer 2 99% undivided participation interest in
the Loans end related documents to Perticipant at a discounted price equal 10 76.9725% of the principal

amount of the Loan outstanding as of the Purchase Date, or stated otherwise, 77.75% of 99% of

the principal amount of the Loan outstanding as of the Purchase Diate, less a $100.00 Booking Fee
which Participant may deduct and retain from the Purchase Price to cover its costs of booking the
Participation Interest;

WHEREAS, Participant desires to accept the 99% undivided participation interest in the Loans
on the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement: and

WHEREAS, Habitat shatl remain the sole owner of the Loans and shall service the Loans by and
through its agent, AmeriNat or substitute servicer acceptabie to Habitat and Participant,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein
contained, Habitat and Participant agree as fallows:

Section 1. Definitions, Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases
shall have the following meanings unless the cortext otherwise requires:

"Additioha! Servicing Compensation” means (i) amounts collected for checks or other items
retumed for insofficient fimds, (i) late payment charges (but not defavlt interest) with respect to the
Loans, and (iii) any modification fees, extension fees, assumption fees and similar processing fees
received from or on behalf of any Borower.

"ALTA" means the American Land Title Association, or any successor thereto,

"Borrower” or "Borrowers" means the person or persons that are obligated as borrowers under
the Loan Documents,

"Colluteral" mesns property of whatever nature or kind pledged to Habitat to securs payment
of any of the ¥.oans.

"Collections" means all moneys, from whatever source derived, received by Habitat from time
to time on account of or in respect of, or refating to, any Loan or as procesds of the Collateral, including
any prepayment fves, but excluding Additional Servicing Compensation, payments for escrow
gmounts, end orgination and commitment fees relating to the Loans.

1

s i gy

B



"Commitment Letter” is # contingent commitment letter prepared by Participant notifying Habitat
that Participant is willing to purchase a Perticipation interest i a Loan, and sets forth eny special
conditions related to Participation that are binding, (A sample Commitment Letter is attached ps Exhibit
A). The Commitment Letter, together with any approved revisions, will also set forth other terms and
conditions specific to an individual Participation and are binding on Habitat and the Borrower.

"Defanlted Loan" has the meaning set forth in Section 8 hereof,

"Loan" means a joan made by Habita (v 2 Borrower in which Participant has ot will have a
Participation.

"Loan Documents" means those documents executed by any Borrower, ar any third party obligor
in respect of any Loan or Loans evidencing or relating to any Borrower's or third party's obligations in
respect of the Loan or Loans or any security interest or Collateral relating to such Loan or Loans,
incluading without limitation, promsissory notes (sometimes referred to horein 8s “Note” or “Notes™),
credit agreements, guarantees, security agresments, morigages, deeds of tust, or letters of credit, but
excluding any credit information or any personal finsncial informartion of iny Borrower, which Habitat
is prohibited from sharing pursuant to the Fair Credit Reporting Act or other spplicable consumer privacy
laws,

"Net Realizable Value" means the amount determined jointly by Participant and Habitat that
can be realized from & Defaulted Loan, after deducting any costs of collection.

"Participation Certificate” means the docurpent evidercing Participant's Participation with
respect to & Loan made between Habitat and & Borvower, A sample Parficipation Certificate is atiached
hereto as Exhibit 13,

"Penficipation Interest” means a 99% undivided perticipation interest in the Collections, the
Loans at the time of Purchase Date, the Collateral, and the Loan Documents, including the prizioipat,
interest, and other payments related thereto,

“Participation Amount” means, with respect to a Loan, that porton of the origina! principal
smount of a Loan purchased by Participant, minus the aggrogate principal smount repaid, on any given
date, on that portion of the Loan purchased by Participant.

“Participant's Share" means Participant's share of any Collections,

"Policies and Procedures” means the written policies and procedures of Habitat and/or its logn
Servicer as set forth In portions of Habitat’s and/or #ts loan Servicer's policies snd provedures manusls
that govern generally, its credit policies, underwriting policies, loan closing policies, collection
policies and booking and billing procedures applicable to the Loans, as amended from time to time.

“Promptly Pry" or "Prompx Payment” means the time period within which Habitat must forward
of remit Particpant's pro rata share of the Collections to Participant in order to avoid late fioes hereundor.
Payment is considered timely for this purpose If Habitat remits in fmmediate. funds said peyment to
Participant within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of paytment. If Participant has more than one
Participation with Habitat, payment may be conibined for all Participations and remitted within fifteen
(15) business days of the end of each month. In the eveni & payment is not remitted to Participant within
fifteen (15) business days of jts above mentioned dus dute, a late fee of the greater of 4% of the total
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payment due (per payment being withheld) or $50 (per payment being withheld), whichever is greater,
shall be automatically assessed, Arrearage wili be determined from the date the payment should have
been remitted through the date the payment is acivally remitted. This lute fee will be immediately due
and owing. Additionally, any and all late fees due to Habitat's delinquency shall not be the responsibitity
af, and shall not be absorbed by or charged to, the Borrower. In compeliing circumstances and upon
Habitat’s wrilten request, Participant may, within its sole discretion, agree to waive any Inte fees due to
a late payment.

"Purchiese Date” means, with respect to 5 Pmﬁcipaﬁbn. the date on which such Participation is
purchased,

“Qualified Mortgage” means a Loan that meets all the requirements to be 1 “Qualified Mortgage™
under the Ability to Repay/Qualified Morigage Rule prosmulgated hy the Consumer Finance md
Protection Burean as amended from time to thme.

“Servicer” means, AmeriNat or substitute servicer ecceptable to Hebitst and Participant.

"Servicing Expenses” means any and all out-of-pocket liahilitios, obligations, losses, penalties,
expenses (including reasonable legal expenses and fees), disbursements, costs and damages, but
excluding salaries and wages of its officers and employees and overhead expenses, incurred by Habitat,
or for which Habitat is responsible, directly or indirectly, in connection with or arising as a result
of (a) the enforcement of tights or remedies with respect to & Loan or the collection of same (including
those arising due to suits, claims or counterclaims by another party againat Habitat), and (b) the protection
of the interests in any collateral seouring the repsyment of a Loan, “Servicing Expenses” does NOT
include services or products provided by or through Habitat for the benefit of the Batrower, guarantor,
or other responsible party to facilitate their compliance with agreed terms and conditione. The mere fact
that Habitat pays an expense does not in itself qualify it as a “Servicing Expense;” rather there must be a
clear comrelation to the enforcement of Habitt’s righits or remediss, Business restructuring expenses do
not congtitute “Servicing Expenaes™ uniess prior written approval is obtained from Participant.

LT HCAEDMEIHE AHTRIcs)

Seetion 2. sriicipation Int Habitat sheil sell, assign amd tramfor, and
Participant shall purchase and accept, sublect to the 1 and conditions of this Agreement, a
Participation in a Loan parsuant to the following process:

(8)  Applications, Habitat shall accept applications from prospeciive Borrowers and, if found
creditwortlry by Habitat and meeting the Policies and Procedures, Habitat may tlose and fund a Loan.
After closing and funding of a Loan, Habitat shall submit the Application for Participation in substantially
the form attached hereto as Bxhibit C, together with supporting documents including a copy of the
exccuted Loan Documents for the F.oan, i & form satisfactory to Participant, for the Participant's review
and purchase approval. No Participation Interest in any Loan shall be sold if Habitat's representations
and wamenties contained in Section 3 of this Agreement or if Participant's representations and
wezrdnties contained In Section 4 of this Agreement shall nat be true and correct as of the date of
sale by Habitat Esch Loan shall be included within the definition of "Loans" from and after the
Purchase Date for all purposes of this Agreement. Participant expressly reserves the right, in ita sole
discretion, to accept or reject any Borrower and/or any Loan. Once Habitat receives and returns ap
execided Commitment Letter ag set forth in the following subparagraph (b), the purchase of the
Participation interest may be consummated by Participant’s tender of the Purchase Prics less the Booking
Fee and the isswmce by Habitat of the Participation Certificate to Participant as set forth herein .




(b)  The Participant Commitmeat. Upon receipt from Habitat of an Application for
Participation with the applicable documents, including the Loan Documents, Participant, in its sole
disetetion, shall determine whether it will purchase a Participation Interest in the loan, Participant shall
make every attempt to make its detetmination within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Application for
Participation and applicable documents, including the Loan Documents, i Participant approves the
Application for Participation, it will issue and send, via electronic communication, a Commitment Letter
to Habitat, which shall remain in effect for thirty (30) days. Habitat shall, within thirty (30) days after the
Commitment Letter is issued, sign it and return the original to Participant or the Commitment Letter shail
expire. Participant, in its sole discretion, may prar an extension of time provided that no material chenge
in either the Loan, the financial condition of the Borrower (including guaramors), or the Borrower's
ability to repay the Loan as originally approved has occurred, If Participant declines the Application for
Participation, it will make every attempt to so advise Habitat within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
Application,

(3] Parchase and Funding of Participation. Participant shall deliver the Purchase Price for
the Loan less the Booking Fee to Habitat within five (5) business days of its receipt of the executed
Commitment Letter from Habitat, and Habitat shall have its suthorized designee execute and deliver a
Participation Certificate to Participant (a samiple of which is attached as Exhibit B) within five (5) business
days of its receipt of such funds fram Participant. Participant shall acknowledge the Panticipation
Certificate. The sale and purchase of Participstion Interest will be considered consummated in sccordance
with the Commitment Letter on the date Participant funds are transferred io Habitat imespective of
Participant's receipt of the Participation Certificate.

Section 3, Habitat hereby represents and

(n) Habitat is a Florida non-profit corporation. Habitat is licensed, qualified and in good
standing in Florida where the location of its properties or the conduct of its business requires such
lieensing or qualification, Habitat is in compliance with the laws of Florida to the extent DECESSATY 10
ensure: the enforceability of any related Loan in accordance with its terms.

(b)  Habitat has the corporate power and authority, and has taken afl revessary and proper
corporate action to enter into and perform this Agreement and fo consummate the transactions

contexnplated hereby.

(¢}  This Agreement, together with any other document or instrument related to the transfer
of the Participation Interest to Participant, hay been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Habitat
and, assuming the due suthotization, execution end delivery of this Agreement and such other
doouments by Participant, constitutes the valid and binding obligntions of Habitar enforceable
ageinst it in accordance with their terms, oxcept as such enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, frauduient conveyance or other similar laws affecting the enforcetnent
of creditors rights generally or by general equiteble principles (regerdless of whether such
enforcernent is considered in a procaeding in equity or at law).

(d)  The execution, delivery, end performance of this Agtvement does not conflict with, or
result in a breach of or defoult under Habitat's Charter or Bylews, any agreement or jnstrument to
which Hubitat is & party, or any federal, siate or local law, regulation, ruling or interpreiation to
which Habitat is subject, the violation of which would hsve 2 material adverse effect on the
collectability of the Losng, taken as a whole, or the validity of the Participation Inferest.
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{e) There is no litigation, adminisirative sction, arbitration, proceeding or investigation pending
or, to the best knowledge of Habitat, threatened against Habitat in any federal, state or local court, or
before any administrative agency or arbitrator, or before any other tribunat duly suthorized to resolve
disputes which, if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on the collectability
of the Loans, teken ag a whole, or the validity of the Participation Interest.

()  No consent, approval, authorization or order of, or registration or filkng with, or notice
o any court or governmental agency or bady is required for the execintion, delivery and performance
by Habitet of, or complienee by Habitat with, this Agreement or consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement which has not been performed or obtained.

{g) Habitat is the sole owner of the Loans, free and clear of claims, liens, charges and
encumbrences of any type, except for the Purticipation Interest granted hereunder.

()  Each Loan has been underwritten, closed, advanced, booked and administered in
accordance with the Policies and Procedures. Habitat agrees to service the Lioans through its Servicer,
in accondance with (i) applicable federa) and state Jaws and regulations, (if) the Policies and Procedures,
and (iii) customary practices, policies and procedures for servicing residential mortgage loans
(hereafter, the “Services”), including, without limitation, all activities of personnel of Habitat, all
supphics and all data trapsmission and processing equipment needed:

(i) to prepare and maintain appropriate books and reords evidencing or pertaining to
the Loans;

(if)  to receive, process and account for payments on the Loans;

(i}  to prepare and mail statements, notices or disclogures to Borrowers as may be
appropriate or required by law;

(iv)  torespond prompily to any customer inquiries Habitat may receive in connection
with the Loans;

(v} to provide security to protect the confidentiality of information relating to the
Loans or the Borrowers thereunder;

(vi)  tocharge miscellaneous non-interest fos on the Loans, such as late charpes,
purstiant to the terms of the promissory note and mortgage securing the Loan;

{vil)  td collect and propetly apply any credit insurance, private mortgage insurance or
Hloed insurance premiums due in connection with the Loans; ‘

{viii) to provids Participant from time to time with Habitat's standard reports rogarding
the Loans and the portfolio being serviced hereunder, including without limitstion, demographic
information on the Borrowers in sccordance with Homs Mortgage Disclosire Act; and

(ix)  to verify on an annual basis that all taxes, governmental aysessments, special
assessments, insurance premitims, and municipal charges have been paid by the Borrowers.

(i)  Except as would not have e material adverse effect on the enforceability or collectability
of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, each Loan Document is genuine, was duly
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authorized, executed and defivered and is the legal, valid and binding obligation of Habitat, and
the other perties thereto, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except () as sich enforcement may
be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorgamization, fraudulent conveyance, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally or by general equitable principles
(repardless of whether such enforcement is considered in a proceading in equity or at law), or (ii} to
the extent that certain of the remedial provisions of the Loan Documents may be limited by applicable
law, provided that such limitations do not make the remedies provided for in the Loan Documnents
inadequate for the practical realization of the benefits of the security intended to be afforded thereby.

()  Exceptas wonld not have a muterial adverse affect on the enforceability or callectability
ofthe Loans, or the validity of the Participation Interest, all recocdable instrursents included in the
Loan Documents have been duly recorded in alf places necessary to perfect valid, first priority security
interests or mo liens, as the case may be, and the Loan Documents create valid, existing
enforceable, and, to the extent possible, perfected first priority liens on the Collateraf,

(®  All costs, fees and expenses incurred in underwritlog, closing and funding each Loan and
recording aqy instruments related thereto have been paid or are not assessable against Patticipant.

(1} Habitat and/or its Servicer shall have complied with all applicable federal, state and local
laws, regutstions, ralings and interpretations applicable to the making and servicing of any Loan.

()  Except as would not have a material adverse effect on the enforceability or collectability
of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, there is no default, breach, viokation or
event which would permit acceleration of the amounts due under the Loans or the Loen Doouments
and 5o event which, with the passage of time or with notice and the expiration of any grace or
cure period, would constitute & default, broach, violation or event which would permit acceleration,
-und Habitat hus not waived any defisult, breach, violation or event which would permit acceleration.

{n)  Except as would not have e material adverse effect on the enforceability or collectability
of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, to the best of Habitat's knowledge, none of
ihe Loan Documents i subject to any valid set-off, abatement, diminution, counterclaim or defense,
including, without limitation, a defense of usury, or any right of rescission, and no such setoff,
abatement, diminution, counterclalm or defense, including a defense of usury, or right of rescission,
has been asserted with respect thereto.

{0)  The information set forth in each Application for Participation subroitted with respect to
a Loan will be-true and correct in all material respects s of the date or dates #s to which the
information is given and the amount of each Loan set forth in such Application for Participation is a
valid debt due and owing by the applicable Borrower to Habitat in the amount and as of the dute set
forth in such Application for Participation.

(F}  Except as would not have 8 meterial adverse effect on the enforceability or collectability
of the Logns or the validity of the Participstion Interest, each Loan (i) is, or will be in the ordinary
course of business, coveraed by an ALTA lender’s title insurance policy if required by the Policies and
Procedures of Habitat and/or its Servicet, and each such title insurance poliey is issued by a title insurer
accepteble to Habitat and qualified to do business in the jurisdiction where the Collateral is located,
insuring Habitet and Ity successors and assigns, as to Habitat's corresponding lien, subject oaly
to any loss by reason of the nvalidity or unenforceability of the lien resulting from the provisions of
such Loan providing for adjustment to the interust rate and monthly payment, (if) where required by




state law or regulation, each Borrower under such Loan has been given the opportunity to choose the
carrier of the required mortgage title insurance, (iii) such lender's title insurance policy affirmatively
insures ingpess and egress, and against encroschments by or upon the Collateral or any interest therein,
(iv) Habitat and its successors and assigns, are the sole insureds of such lender's title insurapce
policy, and such Jender's title insurance policy is valid and remains in fall force and effect and will be
in force and effect upon the consummation of the transactions contemnplated by this Agreement, and
(v} no claims have been made under such fender’s title insurance policy and, neither Habitat nor, to
the best of jts knowledge, any other prior holder of such related Loan, has done, by act or omission,
anything which would impair the coverage of such lender’s title insurance policy, Including without
limitation, no unlawful fee, commission, kickback or other unlawfil compensation or value of any
Kind has been or will be reccived, retained or realized by any sttomey, firm or other person or
entity, and no such unlawfisl items have been received, retained or realized by Habitat,

)] Neither this Agresment nor any information, statement, tape, disketts, report, or
other docurient furnished or o be fumished pursuant to this Agreement or in connection with
the transactions contemplated heveby contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or will
omit o state 2 material fact necessary to make the statements contzined herein or thersin not

misleading.

{r) Prior to Participant’s acceptance of 2 Perticipation Interest in any Loan under this
Agreement, Habitat shall provide information setisfactory to Participant evidencing that Habitat's
Servicer provides contractual indemnity, defense and hold harmless protections to Habitat with respect
to servicing Loaps under this Agreement,

(8)  Imsurmmes, Habitat will obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term
of this Agreement, at its own expense, a fidelity bond and errors and omissions insurance, covering
Habitat's officers and employees and other persons acting on behalf of Habitat in its capacity as servicer
with regard to the Loans, in an amount acceptable to Participant, With respect to each Loan, there is in
effect o hazand insurance policy with an insurance carier issued by an insurance company acceptable to
Participant with the scope of standard extended coverage, each of which policy provides for fire and
extended coverage in an amount at least aqual to the Jesser of the Loan batance or one hundred percent
(100%) of the insurable value of the improvements on the mortgaged property. Habitat shall furnish to
Participant reasonably satisfactory evidence of such coverages for each raortgaged home securing the
ioans 10 be purchaged at the time the “{L.oan Documents™ are delivered to the Participant for review.

(0  Qualified Mortgage. Each Loan shalt be a Qualified Mortgags.

Section 4,

(8) Participant is a national bank. Participant is in compliance with iaws to the extent
necessary to ensure the enforceability of any related Loan in accordance with its terms.




(b}  Participant has the corporate power and authority, and has tsken all necessary and
proper comporate sction to enter into and perform this Agresment and to consummuate the
transactions confernplated hereby.

() This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Participant and,
assuming the due authorization, execution and defivery of this Agresment by Habitut, constitutes the
valid and binding obligation of Partizipent enforceable aguinst it in accordance with its terms, except
as such enforcement may be limited by banknsptey, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent
conveyance or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors rights generully or
by general equitable principles (regardless of whether such enforcement is considered in a proceeding
in equity or at law).

{d)  The execution, delivery, and performence of this Agreement does notconflict with,
or regult in a breach or default under, Participant’s Chartar or Bylaws, any agreernent or instrument
to which Participant is a party, or any federal, state or locat law, regulation, ruling or interpretation to
which Participant is subject. '

(e}  No consent, approval, authorization or order of, or registration or filiog with, or notice
to any court or govemmental agency orbody is required for the execution, delivery and performance
by Participant of or comphianice by Participant with this Agreement or the consurmmstion of the
transactions comtemplated by this Agreement which has not been performed or obtained.

(f}  Participant has been given the apportunity (i) to ask questions of Habitat and to examine
its books and records pertaining to the Loans and Loan Documerts (other than credit information or
personal finaacial information of any Borrower, which Habitat is prohibited from sharing pursuant to
the Fair Credit Reporting Act or any other applicable consumer privacy laws) and (i1} to obtain any
additional information which Habitat possesses or can reasonably obtain which is necessary to verify
the accuracy of the information previously obtained. In making an investment in the Loans, Lo
Documents and related Collateral, Participant has relied solely on the information obtained and upon its
independent investigation.

(g) Participant is acquiring the Participation Interest solely for its own account as an fvestment
and wilt not sell or transfer the Participation Interest without the prior approval of Hahitat,

Section 5. Habits pations (o Farticipant

(@)  Habitat, as servicer of the Loans, shall be obligated to collect, a5 Participant's trustee with
tespect to Participant’s pro rata share theveof, alf payments of interest and principal due and payable on
the Loans, together with any charges, faes, costs, expenses and sny and ail other amounts due on or In
connection with the Loan Documents, including without limitation all Servicing Expenses incurred by
Habitat,

() If and when Collections are received on or after the Effective Date, Habitat shall
Promptly Pay Participant’s Share to Pacticipant; provided, however, thet to the extent
Collections reccived by Habitat on or after the Effective Date represent payment of principel,
interest, or provesds of Collateral on any Loan in respect of any period or partial period before the
Effective Date, payment to Partivipant shall be appropriately adjusted to reflect the period of
time during which Participant held the Particlpation Interest in such Loan. Participant's share of all
Collections shall be remitted by déposit to Participants designated asccount titled in

~-3



Participant's name ot CenterState Bank, or otherwise as Participant shall instruct Habitat in writing.
Funds due to Participant from Habitat hereunder shall be Promptly Paid on at least a monthly besis
and more often if otherwise agreed by the parties.  Provided, however, Habitat is authorized o
retain from the Collections remitied to Participant each morith an amount that is equal to $16.00 per
Loan as Participant's agreed contribution to the cost incurred by Habitat in servicing the Loans.

()  If Habitat should for any reason make any payment to Participant in anticipation
of the receipt of funds it respect of any Loan and such funds are not daly received by Habitat on the
date such payment is due, or such payment proves to be in excess of the smount due to Participant, as
applicable, then Participant shall, upor request of Habitat, promptly retum to Habitat any suok amouns
plus interest thereon from the day such amounts, as applicable, were transferred by Hubitat to
Participant up to, but not including, the day such smourits, applicable, are retumed by Participant
at 2 rate per annum equal to the effective federal funds rate as published in The Wall Street Joumnal
{Eaxtern Edition) on such transfar dute, :

(@) If, pursuant to any bankrupicy, insotvency, liquidation or reorganization law or similar
law, Habitat is required at ny time to retumn any portion of the payments made by any Bortower or
any other entity obligated with respect to any Loxn or otherwise recelved by Habitat, Participant shail,
on demand of Habitat, promptly return to Habitat any such amounts recelved by Participant, but without
Interest thereon, unless Habitat is required to pay interest on such amounts to the person recovering
such payment, in which case with interest thereon, computed at the same rate that Habitst is resquired to
pay in relation to such retum of payment by Habitat,

{)  Inits hundling of any Loan and any Collateral security rights under the Loan Docuents,
Habita shall exercise the same care and due difigence it exercises when it processes loans and collateral
security rights on its own behalf and within the covenants and requirements of this Section 5. It is
understood that Habitat shall have no independent responsibility for the performance of a Borrower's
obligation, nor for any failure or delay in exercising any rights or powers given Habitat by the Loan
Documents, beyond undertaking the same care that Habita: exercises in the making and handling of
loans and credits for its own account.

{f) Except as provided for in Section 8 a Participation or a Loan may not be transferred by
Participant or Habitat (as applicable), in whole ar in part, without the writien consent of the other party
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. In no event shall Habitat reduce ita ownetship to legs
than the agreed uporn percentage of the initial participation.

() All Collateral svidenced by the Loan Documents and any additional security given by a
Borrower shall be held by Habitat primarily as security for the Loan and shall not be used or applied
toward payment of other obligations of the Berrower to Habitat, as long es the Loan remains unpaid and
as long a1 this Agreement remains in effect; provided however, that nothing herein shall prevent Habitat
from collecting payments from the Borrower for other indsbtedness, or foreclosing upon other security
that is not securing a Loan covered under this Agreement, if the other Joans or credits are in defayit, are
separately stated on the books of Hebitat, and the security or other collateral is segregated at all times,
and provided that any such action does not trigper an event of default under the Loan Documents,

(k)  All Collections recoived by Habitat in connection with any Loan (other than the fees)
shalt be applied and distributed in the following order of priority: (i) to the payment of all Servicing
Expensea (if any); (if) to the payment of accrved and unpald interest on the Note; and {iti) to the payment
of principal on the Note. Before any distribution to Participant, with respect to any such application being
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made, the amount thereof shall be adjusted to the extent that any amount is owed by either party to the
other, in accordance with the terms hereof

4y Participant authorizes Habitat, and Habitat hereby agrees to act as agent for Perticipent

subject to the limitations contained herein: (i} to negotinte, control, manage and service the Loans; (i} to
enforce or to refrain from enforcing the Loan Documents; (jii) to give consents, commitments or waivers
in connection with the Loan Documents; (iv) to acquire additional security for the Loans; (v) to take or
rofinin from taking any action and make any determination provided for herein or in the Loan Documnts;
and (vi) to exercise all such powers as are incidental thereto. Habitat acknowledges its statos es trustes
and represents that it has the power to perform the services listed in this Section, In acting under this
A,gmemem, Habitst agrees 10 exervise the same degres of care in administering each Loan as it would
use in managing ity own foans in which no Participation has been issusd. Habitat agroes thes the exercise
of these fiduciary responsibilities as frusiee for Participant includes the full and complete pursuit of
aritounts owed in relation to any unpaid portion of an entire Loan wntil released from that responsibility
in writing by Participant, while Participant retains an undivided interest in such Loan and any related
Loan Dociments, Further, Habitat agrees that it will teke no independent action, unless agreed to in
advance and in writing by Participant, that directly, ot indirectly by nature of a proceeding or process,

releases any Borrower or any guarantor or other responsible party or emtity, in full or in partial
satisfaction, from a continuing responibility to repay any Loan and/or other applicable charges/fees in
relation to debt collection activities, until all amounts due are paid in full.

()] Habitat hereby covenants with respect to each Loan that it shalf not, without Participant’s
prior written consent or approval:

(i} consent to or accept aty caucellation, termination, revision, or settlament of any
Loan Document, or agree to any transfir or termination of any instrument now or hercafter
assigned to it as security for the Lo

(i)  releass, partially or fully, any collateral given as security for a Loan or any
uarantor of the Loan;

(hi) extend the maturity date of a Loan or the date of any interest or principal
payment thereinder;

(iv}  reduce the amount of any payment of principal or the applicable interest rate;

(v increase the maximum amount of a Lomn or the obligations of Habitat or
Participant pursuant to any Loan Document;

(vi)  require the acceptance of 8 new note evidencing a Loan, in substitution for the
Noie;

{vif)  waive or consent to the modification of any Loan Document that would cauge a
Loan to no longer be in complisnce with the requirements of Section 3; or

{vili} consent to any smendment or modification to 8 Loan Document that would be, in
the judgment of a prudent financial manager, material to any Eoan,
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In the event that Habitat seeks Participant's consent or approval for any of the matters
enumerated above Participent shall make every effort to respond to Habitat's request within ten (10)
business days after such request. Such response may be by telephone, to be confirmed in writing promptly
thereafter.

(k)  Habitat shall consuit in good faith with Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such
a default is caused by the nonpayment of principal or interest, by the bankruptey of a Borrower or a
guarantor, or by the.oecurrence of an event thit would have a material sdverss effect on the repuyment
of the Loan or the coliateral securing the Losn (in Habitst's reasonable judgment), Habitat stwll not waive
such default without the written consent of Perticipant..

ity In the event of actual or threatened litigation affecting a Loan or the security for such
Loan, and if Hebitat is of the opinion that the services of an attorney should be retained to protect those
interests, Habitat may, following ten (10} business dsys' prior writien notice to Participant {unless, in the
judgment of Habitat, iromediate action is required, whereupon sny reasonable form of notice to
Participart shall be acceptable), retnin counsel to represent Habitat, Habltat shall seek to cause the
Borrower to pay the reasonable fees and expenses of such counsel in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Loan Documents, but if the Borrower fuils to pay such fees and expenses, then Habitg
shall pay all reasonable costs thereof as Servicing Expenses. Participant shall not have sy right in
connection with such fitigation to retain other counsel, except at the sole cost and expense of Participent.

(m}  Hahitat shall promptly furnish to Participant an ex¢cuted copy of any Loan Documents
and copies of all such documents pertaining to any Loan, including, without limitation, periodic financial
information required fo be detivered to Habitat which Habitat has in its possession from time to time,

Section 6.  Loan Advences. Hsbitat shall make required advances of additional fimds
under & Loari t the extent of Habitat’s ovtstanding commitment related to such Loan at the time of such
advance. Participant shall pay to Habitat, 2t least on o monthly basis and more ofien if otherwise
agreed by the parties, its share of the amount of the advance, In the event Participant fails to pay such
amourt a3 yequired hereby, the unpaid smount shall beer interest at & rute per enoum equal to the
effective federal funds rate as publisted in The Wall Street Journal (Bestern Bdition) for the date such

payment is due,

Soction 7. Other Business; Bouks and Records.

(a) Hubitat and its affilistes may enmter into losns with, accept deposits from,
rake loans or otherwise extend credit to, accept collateral and engage in any kind of loan financing,
banking or trust or other business with any Borrower and its respective affilintes and receive payment
on such loans or extensions of credit and otherwise act with respect thereto freely amd without
accountability in the same manner es if this Agreement and the Loans were not bn effect.

(b Habitat zhail at all times keep proper books and reconds in sccordance with
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") consistently applied, reflecting all transactions
in connection with the Loans, Al such records (gther than credit information and personal fnancisl
information of any Borrower, which Hebitat is prohibited from sharing pursuant to the Fair Credit
Reporting Act or any other applicable consumer privacy Jaws) shall be accessible for inspection
by Participant at all reasonable times. during Habitat’s business hours.
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{(c) Participant shall at al] tiznes keep proper books and records in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™) consistendy applied, reflecting histories of alt
payment applications of Participant's Share received from Habitat in connection with the Loans. All
such records shalf be accessible for inspection by Habitat at all reasonable times during Parficipant’s
business howrs.

Bection 8.

(a) Upon the pecurrence of a default or an Event of Drefault (as defined in the Loan
Documenis) or upon default in the payment of any principal of, or interest on, a
Note or in the observange of the performance of any of the terms, covenants and
conditions of any of the Loan Docurments, Habitat shall promptly notify Pariicipant
in writing, such notice to be provided no later than thirty (30) days from the
occurrence of the event triggering such ubligation of notice. If the defanlt is not
cured and the Loan is delinquent in payments for & period of ninety (90) days, or
in other words, the delinquent amount is equal to or greater than the REgregHte
amount of three monthly payment amounts (2 "Defaulted Loan"), then for so long
as Participant owns the Participation Interest, Habitat shat} use its begt efforts to
replace such Defaulted Loan with a substitute loan (the “Substitute Loan“) Any
Substitute Loan must be secured by residential real estate located in Alachua
County, Florida, have & mongage interast rate equal to the interest rate of the
Defaulied Loan, have a maturity date similar to the Defautted Loan, otberwise
meetall of the termy and conditions of this Agreement and sll of the representations
and warranties of Habitat hereunder.

(b) Each Joan will have a Substitution True Up Workshieet (“Worksheet™) prepared at
{he time of each Purchase Date and made a part of the Participation Certificate, a
sample of which is attached a5 Exhibit D. The Worksheet will exhibit & value in a
cofumn labeled “Habitat Repurchase Obligation” (“Habitat Repurchase
Obligation”). The Habitat Repurchase Obligation shall reflect the remaining
balance owed to-the Participant based on the Participant's lomn accounting
(amortization schedule which Is an agreed upon and acceptable method to Habitat)
for the Participation. The Substitte Loan for the Defuulted Loan will need to be
in an smount that is equal to the corresponding value derived frora the Worksheet
divided by 769725, If 76.9725% of the Substitute Loan exceeds the
Habitat Repurchess Obhigation then the Participant shall advance additional
monies to Habitat based on the incremental difference leaving a balance
owing to the Participant equal to 76.9725% of the Substitute Loan. If 76.9725%
of the Substitute Logn is less than the Habitat Repurchase Obligation then
Habitat shall repay the incremental difference to the Participant leaving a balance
owing to the Participant equal to 76,9725% of the Substitute Loan.

Upon Habitat's substitution of a Substitute Loan, Habitat will issue a Participation
Certificate for the Substitute Loan to Participant, and Participant shall transfer and
convey its Perticipation Interest in the Defauited §oan to Habitut, without recourse
o any warranty express or implied except for Patticipant’s representation of
ownership of its Participation Interest in the Defuulted Loan. Participant shall
execute al! assignments, endorsements and other instruments of conveyance as
may be reasonably necessary,
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() In the event Habitst does not have a compareble Substitute Loan, Habitat shsl],
within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from Participant of any Defaulted Loans,
repurchase the Defaulted Loan (s), at a price, payable in immediately available
funds, equal to the Habitat Repurchase Obligation. Upon Habitat's repurchase of
4 Defauited Loan, Participant shall transfer and convey to Habitat its Participant
Interest in the Defaulted Lo without recourse or any wartunty express or implied
other then the warranty of ownership of the interest transferred, Participant shall
excoute afl assignments, endorsements and other insiraments of conveyance as

may reasonably be necessary, -

(d) Upon discovery by either Habitat or Participant of any breach of the
representations o warranties contained herein that materially and adversely affect
the value of the Loans or the interest of the Participant thevein or in a related Loan
(or the interest of the Participant in a related Loan in the case of a representation
and warmanty releting to a particular Loan) the party discovering such breach shall
give prompt writien notice to the other party, in the event of the discovery of such
breach, Habitat shall, within thirty (30) days of receipt of demand from Participant,
repurchase sny such Loan(s) for which a breach was discovered (Defauited Loan
(5)), at the Hubitat Repurchase Obligation value, payable in immediately available
funds, Upon Habitat's repurchase of & Defaulted Loan, Participant shall transfer
and convey to Habitat its Participant Interest in the Defaulted Loan without
TECOUrse or any warrmty express or implied other than the warranty of ownership
of the interest teansfermed, Participant shall execute all assignments, endorsemments
and other instruments of conveyance as may rensonably be necessary.

Section 2, Indemuifi¢ation.

(1)  Habitat agrees to Indernnify Participant and hold Participant harwless, on demand, for and
egainst any ond ali claims, demands, Habilities, obligations, losses, dumages, penalties, actions,
forfeitures, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements (including fees and  dishursements of
counsel and arbiiration and arbitrators fees) of eny kind or nature whatsosver which may be
imposed on, incuired by, or asserted agalnst Participant in any way relating to or arising out of (i) the
‘materie] breach by Habitat of any of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement or
(k) the intentional misconduct, bad faith, or negligence of Habitat or its agent, AmeriNat or substitute
an?ctr accepteble to Habitat and Participant, Habitat's lisbility should not exceed 76.9725% of

¢ foregoing .

) Participant agrees to indemnify Habitat and hold Habitat harmless, on demand, for and
against any aod all claims, demands, lighilities, obligations, josses, damages, penalties, actions,
Jjodgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements (including fees end disbursements of counsel and
arbitration and acbitrator’s fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be imposed on, incurred
by, or asserted against Habitat in any way relating to or arising out of n Losn and Loan Docurents
that are not reimbursed or gtherwise paid 1o or recovered by Habitat pursuant to the Loan Documents;
provided, however, that Participant shall not be liable for any of the. foregoing to the extent they arise
from Habitat’s or its servicing egent’s intertional misconduct, bad faith, or negligence and
Participant’s liability should not excesd 76.9725% of the foregoing. Should Habitat be sued or
tireatoned by suit by any receiver or trustee in bankeuptey or by rny Borrower as a debtorin-
possession on account of any alleged preference, voidable teamsfer or fraudulent conveyance
aileged to have been received as the result of any transaction in respect of which Particlpant has
perticipated with Habitat hereander, or if any clam, suit or action shall be asserred against Habitat
relating to such transsctions, then in such event,
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gny money paid by Habitat in satisfaction or compromise of such suit, action or demand, any money peid
required to be returned by Habitst to such Borrowsr or its estute and any costs ar faes associated
therewith shall be reimbursed to Habitat by Participant upon demand by Habitat,

Section 10.  Consideration for Sale. In consideration for the sale of Participation Interest of
the Loans by Habitat, Participant agrees to pay to Habitat an amount equal to 77.75% of 99%, or
stated another way 76.9725% of the sum of the aggrepate outstanding principal and ether fees and
chargesa due and owing on the Loans sold (“Purchese Price™); a¢ the tite of purchase. The Purchase Price
for the Loans shall be paid by Paticipant to Habitat on the date of purchase by wire trensfer of
immediately available funds to the account designated by Habitat or & bank check,

Section 11, Setoff by Habitat. Habitat agrecs that if it should recoive through the exercise
of any right of counterclaim, sctoff, bamker's lien or otherwise, any Collections in respect to the
Loans, that Habitat will remit the Participant's Share of such funds to Perticipant in accordance with
the termos of this Agreement.

Sectlon 12.

(8) Itis the intention of Participant and. Habitst that Participant shafl become veated with an
unidivided equitable ownership interest (groportional to such Participation from time to time) in the
Loans and Collateral as evidenced by the Loan Documents and that this Apreement shall have the
same foree and effect as if separate sssignments of each Loan, Loan Booument, and respective
Collateral were executed, delivered by Habitat and as if & separate endorsement were made to the
promissory note for each Loan to reflect that Participant owns mn undivided intevest in such Loan. If
Habitat acquives any security interests or lieas gramed by any of the Loen Documents, Participant
shail have an undivided interest in such security interest or lien equal o its Participation in the Loan,
notwithstanding the fact that the security interest or lien i in the name of, and/or poasession i3 maintained
by Habitst. If there is an amendment to any applicable bankruptcy law, or if there is a ruling of a count
of competent jurisdiction, to the effect that the holding of the Participation Intetest is an extension of
credit, Habitat shall take such additiona! steps as Participant may reasonably require, at Participant's
expense, to assure Participant's legal rights ag an owner of intensst in the Loans,

(b) Al Loan Documents and the rights conveyed by them executed and dalivered in
connection with any Loan shall be held by Habitat in trust for the pro rata benefit of Habitat and
Participant, and as servicing agent for Participant, Habitat is authorized to retain the Notes and the
Loan Documents in Habitat's name and to deal with pertics other than Participant as though Habitat were
&n ahsolute awner of the Losn and the Loum Dociments, Any person, firm or corporation may deal with
Habrtat concetning the Loan in the same menner as if the Participation was not outstanding and Habiat
wi the sole owner of the Loan, except 45 Habitat’s rights may be limited by this Agreement. Habitat
mity petform any of its obligations hereunder by or through its agents, employees or attorney,

(c)  Participant and Habitat acknowledge and agree with respect 10 cach Loan that:

(i Habitat is expected to exercise due diligencs in detetmining (i) the accuracy of
any statement, warranty, representation or certification made: by a Borrower and/or any guarantors
in, or in connection with, wny document relevant to the Foan, and (ii} the financial condition of &
Borrower and any guarantor with respect to the Loun or the performance or observance of any
obligations by a Borrowsr or any guarantor with respect to the Loan,
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(i) The sale of a Participation does niot constitute the sale of a "security” under or a3
defined in the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchenge Act of 1934,

(iif)  The relationship between Habitat and Participant is and shalf be that of a seller
and purchaser of a property intevest and not a debtor-creditor relationship. This Agreement is not
intended to constitute, nor shal! it be construed to establish, 2 partnership or juint venture between
Habhitat and Participant.

(d) Although Habitat holds for Participant’s proportional benefit all Colisteral securing
performance and payment of a Borrower's obligations and linbilitiea ynder and in conpection with any
Loan, Participant shak have no interest ir any other property taken as security for any other credit, loan
ot financial accommodation made or furnished to any Borrower by Habitat in which Participant has no
Participation. This shall include any property now or hereafter in Hubitat's possession or under Habitat's
cortrol or in any deposit held that may be or may become security for performance or payment of &
Borrower's or guarantor's obligations and lisbilities uader and in connection with other indebtedness
‘owing to Habitat by reason of the geierat description contained in any other instrument held by Habitat
or by reason of any right of setoff, counterclaim, benker's lien or otherwise; provided, however, if such
propetty, deposit, indebtedness or the proceeds thereof shall be applied to the peyment or reduction of
principal, interest, feas or any other amounts owing by a Botrower or gusrantor in conmection with &
Lonn, then Participant shall be entitted to its pro rata share of such payment. Al collateral
securing performance and payment of a Borrower's obligations and liabilities under and in connection
with any Loan may be used by Habitat in connection with other indebtedness owing to Habitat, but only
if lien position is specifically subordinate to the Loen.

Section 13.

(0}  This docurpent conteing the entire agreement among the parties n regard to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings.

(b) This Agreemwent shall remein infull force and effect until e}l of Participant's
undivided participation interests in the Loans represented by the Participation Interest, including,
without limitation, the undirlying Collateral, are Houidsted or discharged completely, The indemnities
provided for in this Agreement shall survive any such termination of this Agrestment.

o (c) All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing, addressed
&5 follows;

If to Habitat;
Scott Winzeler
Chief Outreach & Development Officer
Alachua Habitat for Himanity
2630 NW 41*® Street
8uite C-3
Gainesville, FL 32606
Telephone: 352-371-5871 Facaimile:
352-378-2306
Email:
swinzeler@alachuahabitat.org

If to Participant: Panl Haven
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CenterState Bank, N.A.

3919 W Newberry Road

Suite 1

Gainegville, FL 32607

Telephone: 352-332-4727
Facsimile: 352-378-1836
Ethail:PHaven@centerstatebank.com

Any notice to be delivered to a perty hereto will be effective upon delivery by
registered or certified mail, retun receipt requested, or overnight delivery service, or hy
electronic mail, telecopy or facsimile machine, Change of address may be made by giving written
notice of the change of address 1o the other party hereto,

(d)  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of Florida applicsble to contrects mede end to be fully pecformed in suchk state, without
otherwiso giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof,

(®)  This Agreement may be executed, acknowledged, and delivered in any mumber
of counterparts, Bach such counterpart shall constitute an original but all of such counterpats taken
together shall constitute one agreement.

(§  This Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented anly by & written
instrument executed by the pariies hereto, The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of one or more
of the provigions of this Agreement in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement: in such jurisdiction or the validity, legality or
enforceabllity of this Agreement, including any such provision in any other jurisdiction, it
being intended thet ell rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be enforceable to the
fullest extent permitted by law,

(4] The headings of the various sections of this Agreement have been inserted for
conventence of reference only and shall not be deetned to be a part of this Agreement,

(h)  This Agreament shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns, except as such assignments aee prohibited
herein. Neither party hercto shail essign all or any part of the rights or obligations ansing hereunder
without the prior written consent of the other jxirty; provided, however, that each of the perties
hereto may, without such consent, assign all or any of the rghts and obligations arising under
this Agreement to (i) a subsidiary, parent or subsidiary of a parent of such party, or (il) any successor
(by merger or otherwise) 1o al or substantially all of the sssets and lishilities of such party; and
provided, firther, that such assignee or successor shall emer into o written sgreement in forn and content
aceeptable to all parties hereto agreeing to be bound by the terros hereof,

() None of the provisions of this Agreerment shall inure to the benefit of sy

Borrower or any person other than Participant and Hebitat and their respective successors and
permitted assigns, Participant may assign its Partficipation interest to an Affiliate, Habitat muay nssign or
encumber its interest in the Loans with the prior written consent of Participant.  Borrowers and any
person other than Participant and Habitat and their respective successors and permitted assigns
all not be entitled fo rely upon or raise as a defense, in arfy manner whatgosver, the failure
of Participant or Habitat to comply with the provisions of this Agreement or to enforee thelr rights
hereunder. Neither Participant nor Habitat shall incur any Kability to sny Barrower or any other person
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for any act or omission of the other. “Affiliate” shall mean any entity that controls Participant, that
Participant controls, or that is under commen contro] with Participant.

()  The parties hereto agree to execute any additional documents, obtain permissions,
meet any requirements or perform any other acts necessary to assure the intent of this Agreement is
fully performed,

(k)  Nothing herein contained confirs on either party any interest in or subjects either
paty to any liability on account of the assets or linhilities of the other, except for Participant's
Participation Interest,

D This Agreement may be executed in counterpatis, ail of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the sarme Agreement.

{(m}  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agresment shatl be interpreted in such
matmer 35 to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement shalf be
prohibited by or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such
prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining
provisions of this Agreement, '

(n}  Habitat agrees to maintain, for a minimum of five (5) years after the repayment,
repurchase or other termiriation of Participant’s Participation, adequate books, records, and suppoting
documents o verify the amounts, recipients, end uses of all disbursements of funds passing in
conjunction with aay Loan and Loan Documents, Habitat agrees that all books, records, and
supporting documents relatad to any Loan and the Loan Documents shall be available for review and
audit by the regulators of Participant and agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to provide full
acoess to ol relevant materials, Habitat further agrees that it wil? make available to the Treasury Inspector
General el books and records refated io the use of the Collections and Purchase Price, subject to the
Right to Pinancial Privacy Act (12 U.8,C. § 3401 et seq.), including detalled Loan records, as applicable.

[remainder of page left intentionally blank}
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreament as of the duy and

ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, INC.
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MASTER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This MASTER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (the "Agreameut"), dated as of March 1,
2018 (the "Effective Date"), between ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, a Florida non-

profit corporation (“Habitat”) and RENASANT BANK ("Participant").
RECITALS

WHEREAS, Habitat originates, underwrites, closes, owns and services certain residential real
home mortgages (collectively, the "Loans");

WHEREAS, Habitat desires to sell, assign, and transfer a 99% undivided participation
interest in the Loans and related documents to Participant at a discounted price equal to 76.725% of
the principal amount of the Loan outstanding as of the Purchase Date, or stated otherwise, 77.5% of
99% of the principal amount of the Loan outstanding as of the Purchase Date, less a $100.00 Booking
Fee which Participant may deduct and retain from the Purchase Price to cover its costs of booking the

Participation Interest;

WHEREAS, Participant desires to accept the 99% undivided participation interest in the
Loans on the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Habitat shall remain the sole owner of the Loans and shall service the Loans by
and through its agent, AmeriNat or substitute servicer acceptable to Habitat and Participant .

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein
contained, Habitat and Participant agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and
phrases shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise requires:

"Additional Servicing Compensation" means (i) amounts collected for checks or other items
returned for insufficient funds, (ii) late payment charges (but not default interest) with respect to
the Loans, and (iii) any modification fees, extension fees, assumption fees and similar processing fees
received from or on behalf of any Borrower.

"ALTA" means the American Land Title Association, or any successor thereto.

"Borrower" or "Borrowers" means the person or persons that are obligated as borrowers
under the Loan Documents.

“Collateral" means property of whatever nature or kind pledged to Habitat to secure
payment of any of the Loans.

"Collections" means all moneys, from whatever source derived, received by Habitat from

time to time on account of or in respect of, or relating to, any Loan or as proceeds of the Collateral, .

including any prepayment fees, but excluding Additional Servicing Compensation, payments for
escrow amounts, and origination and commitment fees relating to the Loans.



"Commitment Lenter" is a contingent commitiment letter prepared by Participant notifying
Habitat that Participant is willing to purchase a Participation interest in a Loan, and sets forth any
special conditions related to Participation that are binding. (A sample Commitment Letter is attached as
Exhibit A). The Commitment Letter, together with any approved revisions, will also set forth other
terms and conditions specific to an individual Participation and are binding on Habitat and the
Borrower.

"Defaulted Loan" has the meaning set forth in Section 8 hereof.

"Loan" means a loan made by Habitat to a Borrower in which Participant has or will have a
Participation.

"Loan Documents” means those documents executed by any Borrower, or any third party
obligor in respect of any Loar or Loans evidencing or relating to any Bovrower's or third party's
obligations in respect of the Loan or Loans or any security interest or Collateral relating to such Loan
or Loans, including without limitation, promissory notes (sometimes referred to herein as “Note” or

“Notes™), credit agreements, guarantees, security agreements, mortgages, deeds of trust, or letters of.

credit, but excluding any credit information ar any personal financial information of any Borrower,
which Habitat is prohibited from sharing pursuant to the Fair Credit Reporting Act or other applicable
consumer privacy laws,

“Net Realizable Value" means the amount determined jointly by Participant and Habitat that
can be realized from a Defanlted Loan, after deducting any costs of collection.

"Participation Certificate” means the documenti evidencing Participant’s Participation with
respect to a Loan made between Habitat and a Borrower. A sample Participation Certificate is artached
hereto as Exhibit B.

"Participation Interest" means a 99% undivided participation interest in the Collections, the
Loans at the time of Purchase Date, the Collateral, and the Loan Documents, including the principal,
interest, and other payments related thergto.

“Participation Amount” means, with respect to a Loan, that portion of the original principal
amount of a Loan purchased by Participant, minus the aggregate principal amount repaid, on any given
date, on that portion of the Loan purchased by Participant.

"Participant's Share" means Participant's share of any Collections.

"Policies and Procedures” means the written policies and procedures of Habitat and/or its loan

Servicer as set forth in portions of Habitat’'s and/or its loan Servicer’s policies and procedures
manuais that govern generally, its credit policies, underwriting policies, loan closing policies,
collection policies and booking and billing procedures applicable to the Loans, as amended from
time to time,

“Promptly Pay” or "Prompt Payment" means the time period within which Habitat must forward
or remit Particpant’s pro rata share of the Collections to Participanl in order to avoid late fees
hereunder, Payment is considered timely for this purpose if Habitat remits in immediate funds said
payment to Participant within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of payment. [f Participant has more
than one Participation with Habitat, payment may be combined for all Participations and remitted
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within fifteen (15) business days of the end of each month, In the event a payment is not remitted to
Participant within fifteen (15) business days of its above mentioned due date, a late fee of the greater of
4% of the total payment due (per payment being withheld) or $50 (per payment being withheld),
whichever is greater, shall be automatically assessed. Arrearage will be determined from the date the
payment should have been remitted through the date the payment is actually remitted. This late fee will
be immediately due and owing. Additionatly, any and all late fees due to Habitat’s delinquency shall
not be the responsibility of, and shall not be absorbed by or charged to, the Borrower, In compelling
circumstances and upon Habitat’s written request, Participant may, within its sole discretion, agree to
waive any late fees due to a late payment.

"Purchase Date" means, with respect to a Participation, the date on which such Participation is
purchased,

“Qualified Mortgage” means a Loan that meets all the reqguirements to be a “Qualified
Mortgage” under the Ability to Repay/Qualified Mortgage Rule promulgated by the Consumer Finance
and Protection Bureau as amended from time to time,

“Servicer” means, AmeriNat or substitute servicer acceptable to Habitat and Participant.

"Servicing Expenses” means any and all out-of-pocket fiabilities, obligations, losses, penalties,
expenses (including reasonable legal expenses and fees), disbwrsements, costs and damages, but
excluding salaries and wages of its officers and employees and overhead expenses, incwrred by Habitat,
or for which Habitat is responsible, directly or indirectly, in connection with or arising as @
result of (a) the enforcement of rights or remedies with respect to a Loan or the collection of same
(inchuding those arising due to suits, claims or counterclaims by another party against Habitat), and (b)
the protection of the interests in any collateral securing the repayment of a Loan. “Servicing Expenses™
doea NOT include services or products provided by or through Habitat for the benefit of the Borrower,
guarantor, or other responsible parly to facilitate their compliance with agreed terms and conditions.
The mere fact that Habitat pays an expense does not in itself qualify it as a “Servicing Expense;” rather

there must be a clear correlation to the enforcement of Habitat's rights or remedies. Business.

restructuring expenses do not constitute “Servicing Expenses™ unless prior writien approval is obtained
from Participant.

Section 2. Tssuance of Participation Interest. Habitat shall sell, assign and transfer, and
Participant shall purchase and accept, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, &
Participation in a Loan pursuant to the following process:

(a) Applications, Habitat shall accept applications from prospective Borrowers and, if
found creditworthy by Habitat and meeting the Policies and Procedures, Habitat may close and fund a
Loan. After closing and funding of a Loan, Habitat shall submit the Application for Participation in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, together with supporting documents including a
copy of the executed Loan Documents for the Loan, in a form satisfactory to Participant, for the
Participant’s review and purchase approval. No Participation Interest in any Loan shall be sold if
Habitat's representations and warranties contained in Section 3 of this Agreement or if Participant's
reptesentations and warranties contained in Section 4 of this Agreement shall not be tue and
correct as of the date of sale by Habitat. FEach Loan shall be included within the definition of
“Loans" from and afier the Purchase Date for all purposes of this Agreement, Participant expressly
reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to accept or reject any Borrower and/or any Loan. Once Habitat
receives and returns an executed Commitment Letter as set forth in the following subparagraph (b), the
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purchase of the Participation interest may be consummated by Participant’s tender of the Purchase Price

less the Booking Fee and the issuance by Habitat of the Participation Certificate to Participant as set.

forth herein

(b) The Participant Commitment, Upon receipt from Habitat of an Application for
Participation with the applicable documents, including the Loan Documents, Participant, in its sole
discretion, shall determine whether it will purchase a Participation Interest in the loan. Participant shall
make every attempt to make its determination within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Application for
Participation and applicable documents, including the Loan Documents. If Participant approves the
Application for Participation, it will issue and send, via electronic communication, a Commitment
Letter to Habitat, which shall remain in effect for thirty (30) days. Habitat shall, within thirty (30) days
after the Commitment Letter is issued, sign it and return the original to Participant or the Cominitment
Letter shall expire. Participant, in its sole discretion, may grant an extension of time provided that no
material change in eithet the Loan, the financial condition of the Borrower (including guarantors), or the
Borrower's ability to repay the Loan as originally approved has oceurred. If Participant declines the
Application for Participation, it will make every attempt to so advise Habitat within thirty (30) days of
receipt of the Application.

(c) Purchase and Funding of Participation. Participant shall deliver the Purchase Price for
the Loan less the Booking Fee to Habitat within five (5) business days of its receipt of the executed
Commitment Letter from Habitat, and Habitat shall have its authorized designee execute and deliver a
Participation Certificate to Participant (a sample of which is attached as Exhibit B) within five (5)
business days of its receipt of such funds from Participant. Participant shall acknowledge the

Participation Certificate. The sale and purchase of Paiticipation Intersst will be considered

consummated in accordance with the Commitment Letter on the date Participant funds are transferred to
Habitat irrespective of Participant’s receipt of the Participation Certificate.

Section 3, Representations and Warranties of Habitat. Habitat hereby represents and
warrants to Participant as of the date hereof:

(a) Habitat is a Florida non-profit corporation. Habitat is Heensed, qualified and in good
standing in Florida where the location of its properties or the conduct of its business requires such
licensing or qualification, Habitat is in compliance with the laws of Florida to the extent necessary
to ensure the enforceability of any related Loan in accordance with its tenms.

(b) Habitat has the corporate power and authority, and has taken all necessary and proper
corporate action to enter into and perform this Agreement and to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby,

{e) This Agreement, together with any other document or instrument related to the transfer
of the Participation Interest to Participant, has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by
Habitat and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement and
such other documents by Participant, constitutes the valid and binding obligations of Habitat
enforceable against it in accordance with their terms, except as such enforcement may be

limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance or other similar laws

affecting the enforcement of creditors rights gencralty or by general equitable principles
(regardless of whether such enforcement is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

(d) The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement does not conflict with, or
result in a breach of or default under Habitat's Chatter or Bylaws, any agreement or instrument to
4
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which Habitat is a party, or any federal, state or jocal law, regulation, ruling or interpretation to
which Habitat is subject, the violation of which would have a material adverse effect on the
collectability of the Loans, taken as a whole, or the validity of the Participation Interest.

(&) There s no litigation, administrative action, arbitration, proceeding or investigation
pending or, to the best knowledge of Habitat, threatened against Habitat in any federal, state or local
court, or hefore any edministrative agency or arbitrator, or before any other tribunal duly authorized
to resolve disputes which, if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on the
collectability of the Loans, taken as a whole, or the validity of the Participation Interest,

(H No consent, approval, authorization or order of, or registration or filing with, or
notice to any court or governmental agency or body is required for the execution, delivery and
petformance by Habitat of, or compliance by Habitat with, this Agreement or consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement which has not been performed or obtained.

{g) Habitat is the sole owner of the Loans, free and clear of claims, liens, charges and

encumbrances of any type, except for the Participation Interest granted hereunder.

(h)  Tach Loan has been underwritten, closed, advanced, booked and administered in
accordance with the Policies and Procedures. Habitat agrees to service the Loans through its Servicer,
in accordance with (i) applicable federa! and state laws and regulations, (ii) the Policies and Procedures,
and (iii) customary practices, policies and procedures for servicing residential morigage loans
{hereafler, the “Services™), including, without limitation, all activities of personnel of Habitat, all
supplies and all data transmission and processing equipment needed:

(i) to prepare and maintain appropriate books and records evideneing or pertaining to
the Loans;

(ii) toreceive, process and account for payntents on the Loans;

{iii} to prepare and mail statements, notices or disclosures to Borrowers as may be
appropriate or required by law,;

(iv) 1o respond promptly to any customer inquiries Habitat may receive in connection
with the Loans;

{v) to provide security to protect the confidentiality of information relating to the
Loans ot the Borrowers thereunder;

(vi)  to charge miscellaneous non-interest fees on the Loans, such as late charges,
pursuant to the terms of the promissary note and mortgage securing the Loan,

(vi)  to collect and properly apply any credit insurance, private mortgage insurance or

flood insurance premiums due in connection with the Loans,

(viii)  to provide Pasticipant from time to time with Habitat's standard reports regarding
the Loans and the portfolio being serviced heteunder, including without limitation, demographic

information on the Borrowers in accordance with Home Mortgage Disclosure Act; and



(ix)  to verify on an annual basis that all taxes, governmental assessments, special
assessinents, insurance premiums, and municipal charges have been paid by the Borrowers.

(i) Except as would not have a material adverse effect on the enforceability or
collectability of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, each Loan Document is
genuine, was duly authorized, executed and delivered and is the legal, valid and binding
obligation of Habitat, and the other parties thereto, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except (1)
as such enforcement may be limited by bankruptey, insolvency,  reorganization,  fraudulent
conveyance, or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally or
by general equitable principles (regardless of whether such enforcement is considered in a
proceeding in equity or at law), or (ii) to the extent that certain of the remedial provisions of the Loan
Documents may be limited by applicable law, provided that such limitations do not make the
remedies provided for in the Loan Documents inadequate for the practical realization of the
benefits of the security intended to be afforded thereby.

6] Except as would not have a material adverse effect on the enforceability or
callectability of the Loans, or the validity of the Participation Interest, all recordable instruments
included in the Loan Documents have been duly recorded in all places necessary to perfect valid, first
priority security interests or mortgage liens, as the case may be, and the Loan Documents create valid,
existing, enforceable, and, to the extent possible, perfected first priority liens on the Collateral.

(k) All costs, fees and expenses incurred in underwriting, closing and funding cach Loan
and recording any instruments related thereto have been paid or are not assessable against
Participant.

(1)  Habitat and/or its Servicer shall have complied with all applicable federal, state and local
laws, regulations, rulings and mterpretations applicable to the making and servicing of any Loan.

{m) Except as would not have s material adverse effect on the enforceability or
collectability of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, there is no default, breach,
violation or event which would permit acceleration of the amounts due under the Loans or the Loan
Docuiments and no event which, with the passage of time or with notice and the expiration of any
grace or cure period, would constitute a default, breach, violation or event which would permit
acceleration, and Habitat has not waived any default, breach, violation or event which would
permit acceleration.

() Except as would not have a material adverse effect on the enforceability or
collectability of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, to the best of Habitat’s
knowledge, none of the Loan Docoments is subject to any valid set-off, abatement, diminution,
counterclaim or defense, including, without limitation, a defense of usury, or any right of rescission,
and no such set-off, abatement, diminution, counterclaim or defense, including a defense of vsury, or
right of rescission, has been asserted with respect thereto.

() The information set forth in each Application for Participation subinitted with respect
to a Loan will be true and correct in all material respects as of the date or dates as to which the
information is given and the amount of cach Loan set forth in such Application for Participation is a
valid debt due and owing by the applicable Borrower to Habitat in the amount and as of the date set
forth in such Application for Participation.



{» Except as would not have a material adverse effect on the enforceability or
collectability of the Loans or the validity of the Participation Interest, each Loan (i) is, or will be in
the ordinary course of business, covered by an ALTA lender's title insurance policy if required by the
Policies and Procedures of Habitat and/or its Servicer, and each such title insurance policy is issued
by a title insurer acceptable to Habitat and qualified to do business in the jurisdiction where the
Collateral is located, insuring Habitat and its successors and assigns, as to Habitat's
corresponding lien, subject only to any loss by reason of the invalidity or unenforceability of the lien
resulting from the provisions of such Loan providing for adjustment to the interest rate and monthiy
payment, (ii) where required by state law or regulation, each Borrower under such Loan has been
given the opportunity to choose the carrier of the required mortgage title insurance, (iii) such lender's
title insurance peolicy affirmatively insures ingress and egress, and against encroachments by or upon
the Coliateral or any interest therein, (iv) Habitat and its successors and assigns, are the sole
insureds of such lender’s title insurance policy, and such lender’s title insurance policy is valid and
temains in full force and effect and will be in force and effect upon the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and {v) no claims have been made under such lender's
title insurance policy and, neither Habitat nor, to the best of its knowledge, any other prior holder of
such related Loan, has done, by act or omission, anything which would impair the coverage of such
lender's title insurance policy, including without limitation, no untawful fee, commission, kickback
or ather unlawful compensation or value of any kind has been or will be received, retained or

realized by any attorney, firm or other person or entity, and no such unlawful items have been.

received, retained or realized by Habitat.

(q) Neither this Agreement nor any information, statement, tape, diskette, report, or
other document furnished or to be furnished pursuant to this Agreement or in connection with
the transactions contemplated bereby containg any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or
will omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein not

misleading.

(3] Prior to Participant’s acceptance of a Participation Interest in any Loan under this
Agreement, Habitat shall provide information satisfactory to Participant evidencing that Habitat’s
Servicer provides contractual indemnity, defense and hold harmless protections to Habitat with
respect to servicing Loans under this Agreement.

(s) Insurance. Fabitat will obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term

of this Agreement, at its own expense, 4 fidelity hond and errors and omissions insurance, covering
Habitat's officers and employees and other persons acting on behalf of Habitat in its capacity as servicer
with regard to the Loans, in an amount acceptable to Participant. With respect to each Loan, there is in
effect a hazard insurance policy with an insurance carrier issued by an insurance company acceptable to
Participant with the scope of standard extended coverage, each of which policy provides for fire and
extended coverage in an amount at least equal to the lesser of the L.oan balance or one hundred percent
{100%) of the insurable value of the improvements on the mortgaged property. Habitat shall furnish to
Participant reasonably satisfactory evidence of such coverages for each montigaged home securing the
Joans to be purchased at the time the “Loan Documents” are delivered to the Participant for review,

(3] Qualified Morlgage. Each Loan shall be a Qualified Morgage.
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Section 4. Representations and Warranties of Participant,

(a) Participant is 2 state bank, incorporated and domiciled in Mississippi, and chartered by
the state of Mississippl. Participant is licensed, qualified and in good standing in each state where the
location of its properties or the canduct of its business requires such licensing or qualification. Participant
is in compliance with the laws of any such state to the extent necessary to ensure the enforceability of any
related Loan in accordance with its terms.

(b} Participant has the corporate power and authority, and has taken all necessary and
proper corporate action to enter into and perform this Agreement and to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby.

(c) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Participant and,

assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement by Habitat, constitutes
the valid and binding obligation of Participant enforceable against it in accordance with its terms,
except as such enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
fraudulent conveyance or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors rights
generally or by general equitable principles (regardless of whether such enforcement is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law),

(d) The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement does not conflict
with, or result in a breach or default vnder, Participant's Charter or Bylaws, any agreement or
instrument to which Participant is a party, or any federal, state or local law, reguiation, ruling or
interpretation to which Participant is subject.

() No consent, approval, authorization or order of, or registration or filing with, or
notice to any court or governmental agency or body is required for the execution, delivery and
performance by Participant of or compliance by Participant with this Agreement or the consummation
of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement which has not been performed or obtained.

(f) Participant has been given the opportunity (i) to ask questions of Habitat and {o examine
its books and records pertaining to the Loans and Loan Documents (other than credit information or

personal financial information of any Borrower, which Habitat is prohibited from sharing pursuant.

to the Fair Credit Reporting Act or any other applicable consumer privacy laws) and (i) to obtain
any additional information which Habitat possesses or can reasonably obtain which is necessary to
verify the accuracy of the information previously obtained. In making an investment in the Loans,
Loan Documents and related Collateral, Participant has relied solely on the information obtained and

upon its independent investigation.

(g) Participant is acquiring the Participation Interest solely for its own account as an
investment and will not sell or transfer the Participation Interest without the prior approval of Habitat.

Section 5. Habitat's Obligations to Participant,

(a) Habitat, as servicer of the Loans, shall be obligated to collect, as Participant’s trustee
with respect to Participant’s pro rala share thereof, all payments of interest and principal due and
payable on the Loans, together with any charges, fees, costs, expenses and any and all other amounts
due on or in connection with the Loan Documents, including without Timitation all Servicing Expenses
incurred by Habitat.
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(b) If and when Collections are received on or after the Effective Date, Habitat shaif
Promptly Pay Participant's Shave to Participant; provided, however, that to the extent

Collections received by Habitat on or after the Effective Date represent payment of principal,

interest, or proceeds of Collateral on any Loan in respect of any period or partial period before the
Effective Date, payment to Participant shall be appropriately adjusted to reflect the period of time
during which Participant held the Participation laterest in such Loan. Participant's share of all
Collections shall be remitted by deposit to Participant's designated account titled in
Participant’s name at Renasant Bank, or otherwise as Participant shall instruct Habitat in writing.
Funds due to Participant from Habitat hereunder shall be Promptly Paid on at least a monthly basis
and more often if otherwise agreed by the parties.  Provided, however, Habitat is authorized 1o retain
from the Cotlections remitted to Participant each month an amount that is equal to $16.00 per Loan as
Participant’s agreed contribution to the cost incurred by Habitat in servicing the Loans.

(¢) If Habitat should for any reason make any payment to Participant in anlicipation
of the receipt of funds in respect of any Loan and such funds are not duly received by Habitat on the
date such payment is due, ot such payment proves to be in excess of the amount due to Participant, as
applicable, then Participant shall, upon request of Habitat, promptly return to Habitat any such
amounts pius interest thereon from the day such amounts, as applicable, were transferred by
Habitat to Participant up to, but not including, the day such amounts, as applicable, are returned by
Participant at a rate per annum equal to the effective federal funds rate as published in The Wall

Street Journal (Eastern Edition) on such transfer date.

(d) If, pursuant to any bankruptey, insolvency, liquidation or reorganization law or

similar law, Habitat is required at any time to retumn any portion of the payments made by any.

Borrower or any other entity oblipated with respect to any Loan or otherwise received by Habitat,
Participant shall, on demand of Habitat, promptly return to Habitat any such amounts received by
Participant, but without interest thereon, unless Habitat is required to pay interest on such amounts to
the person recovering such payment, in which case with interest thereon, computed at the same rate that
Habitat is required to pay in relation to such return of payment by Habitat.

{e) In its handiing of any Loan and any Collateral security rights under the Loan
Documents, Habitat shall exercise the same care and due diligence it excrcises when it processes loans
and collateral security rights on its own behalf and within the covenants and requirements of this
Section 5. It is understood that Habitat shall have no independent responsibility for the performance of
a Borrower's obligation, nor for any Tailure or delay in exercising any rights or powers given Habitat by
the Loan Documents, beyond undertaking the same care that Habitat exercises in the making and
handling of loans and credits for its own account.

() Except as provided for in Section 8 a Participation or a Loan may not be transferred by
Participant or Habitat (as applicable), in whole or in past, without the written consent of the other party
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. In no event shall Habitat reduce its ownership to less
than the agreed upon percentage of the initial participation.

() All Collateral evidenced by the Loan Documents and any additional security given by a

Borrower shall be held by Habitat primarily as security for the Loan and shall not be used or applied”

toward payment of other obligations of the Borrower to Habitat, as long as the Loan remains unpaid
and as long as this Agreement remains in effect; provided however, that nothing herein shall prevent
Habitat from collecting payments from the Borrower for other indebtedness, or faoreclosing upon other
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security that is not securing a Loan covered under this Agreetnent, if the other loans or credits are in
default, are separately stated on the books of Habitat, and the security or other collateral is segregated at
all times, and provided that any such action does not trigger an event of default under the Loan
Documents. '

(h) All Cotlections received by Habitat in connection with any Loan (other than the fees)
shail be applied and distributed in the following order of priovity: (i) to the payment of all Servicing
Expenses (if any); (ii) to the payment of accrued and unpaid interest on the Note; and (iil) to the
payment of principal on the Note. Before any distribution to Pasticipant, with respect 10 any such
application being made, the amount thereol shall be adjusted to the extent that any amount is owed by
either party to the other, in accordance with the terms hereof.

(i Participant authorizes Habitat, and Mabitat hereby aprees to act as agent for Participant
subject to the limitations contained herein: (i) to negotiate, control, manage and service the Loans; (it)
to enforce or to refrain from enforcing the Loan Documents; (iii) to give consents, commitments or
waivers in connection with the Loan Documents; (iv) to acquire additional security for the Loans; (v} to

take or refrain from taking any action and make any determination provided for herein or in the Loan

Documents; and (vi) to exercise all such powers as are incidental thereto. Habitat acknowledges its
status as trustee and represents that it has the power to perform the services listed in this Section. In
acting under this Agreement, Habitat agrees to exercise the same degree of care in administering cach
Loan as it would use in managing its own loans in which no Participation has been issued. Habitat
agrees that the exercise of these fiduciary responsibilities as trustee for Participant includes the full and
complete pursuit of amounts owed in relation to any unpaid portion of an entire Loan until released
from that responsibility in writing by Participant, while Participant retains an undivided interest in such
Loan and any refated Loan Documents. Further, Habitat agrees that it will take no independent action,
unless agreed to in advance and in writing by Participant, that directly, or indirectly by nature of a
proceeding or process, releases any Borrower or any guarantor or other responsible party or entity, in
full or in partiat satisfaction, from a continuing responsibility to repay any Loan and/or other applicable
charges/fees in relation to debt collection activities, untif alt amounts due are paid in full.

()] Habitat hereby covenants with respect to each Loan that it shall not, without
Participant’s prior written consent or approval:

(1) consent to or accept any cancellation, termination, revision, or settlement of any
Loan Document, or agree to any transfer or termination of any instrument now or hereafter
assigned to it as security for the Loan;

(i) release, partially or fully, any collateral given as security for a Lean or any-

guarantor of the Loan,

(iii) extend the maturity date of a Loan or the date of any interest or
principal payment thereunder;

(iv) reduce the amount of any payment of principal or the applicable interest rate,
(v) increase the maximum amount of a Loan or the obligations of Habitat or

Participant pursuant to any Loan Document,
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: (vi}  require the acceptance of a new note evidencing a Loan, in substitution for the
Note,

(vii)  wailve or consent to the modification of any Loan Document that would canse a
I.oan to no longer be in compliance with the requirements of Section 3; or

(viii) consent to any amendment or modification to a Loan Document that would be,
in the judgment of a prudent financial manager, material to any Loan.

In the event that Habitat seeks Participant’s consent or approval for any of the matters l

enumnerated ahove Participant shall make every effort to respond to Habitat's request within ten
(10) business days after such request. Such response may be by telephone, to be confirmed in writing
promptly thercafter,

(k) Habitat shall consult in good faith with Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
such a default is caused by the nonpayment of principal or interest, by the bankruptcy of a Borrower or
a guarantor, or by the occurrence of an event that would have a material adverse effect on the
repayment of the Loan or the collateral securing the Loan (in Habitat's reasonable judgment), Habitat
shall not waive such default without the written consent of Participant..

Q) In the event of actal or threatencd litigation affecting a Loan or the security for such
Loan, and if Habitat is of the opinion that the services of an attorney should be retained to protect those
interests, Habitat may, following ten (10) business days’ prior written notice to Participant (unless, in
the judgment of Habitat, immediate action is required, whereupon any reasonable form of notice to
Participant shall be acceptable), retain counsel to represent Habitat. Habitat shall seek to cause the
Borrower to pay the reasonable fees and expenses of such counsel in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Loan Documents, but if the Borrower fails to pay such fees and expenses, then Habitat
shall pay all reasonable costs thereof as Servicing Expenses. Participant shall not bave any right in

connection with such litigation to retain other counsel, except at the sole cost and expense of

Farticipant.

{(m) Habitat shall promptly furnish to Participant an executed copy of any Loan
Documents and copies of all such documents pertaining to any Loan, including, without limitation,
periodic financial information required to be defivered to Habitat which Habitat has in its possession
from time o time.,

Section 5,  Loan_ Advances. Habitat shall make required advances of additional funds
under a Loan to the extent of Habitat’s outstanding commitment related to such Loan at the time of
such advance. Participant shall pay to Habitat, at least on a monthly basis and more often if
otherwise agreed by the parties, its share of the amount of the advance. In the event Participant fails
to pay such amount as required hereby, the unpaid amount shall bear interest at a rate per annum
equal to the effective federal funds rate as published in The Wall Street Journal (Eastern Edition) for
the date such payment is due.

Section 7. Other Business; Books and Records,

(a) Habitat and its affiliates may enter into loans with, accept deposits from,
make loans or otherwise extend credit to, accept colfateral and engage in any kind of loan financing,
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banking or trust or other business with any Borrower and its respective affiliates and receive
payment on such loans or extensions of credit and otherwise act with respect thereto freely and
without accountability in the same manner as if this Agreement and the Loans weve notin effect.

{b) Habitat shall at ali tirnes keep proper books and records in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") consistently applied, reflecting all transactions
in connection with the Loans. All such records (other than credit information and personal financial
information of any Borrower, which IMHabitat is prohibited from sharing pursuant to the Fair Credit
Reporting Act or any other applicable consumer privacy laws) shall be accessible for inspection
by Participant at all reasonable times during Habitat’s business hours.

(¢)  Participant shall at all times keep proper books and records in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™) consistently applied, reflecting histories of all
payment applications of Participant’s Share received from Habitat in connection with the Loans, All
such records shall be accessible for inspection by Habitat at all reasonable times during Participant’s
business hours.

Section 8. Defaulted Loans: Substituted Loans; Repurchase by Habitat,

(a) Upon the occurrence of a default or an Event of Default (as defined in the Loan
Documents) or upon default in the payment of any principal of, or interest on, a
Note or in the observance of the performance of any of the terms, covenants and
conditions of any of the Loan Documents, Habitat shall promptly notify
Participant in writing, such notice to be provided no later than thirty (30} days
from the occurrence of the event triggering such obligation of notice. If the
default is not cured and the Loan is delinquent in payments for a period of ninety
(90) days, or in other words, the delinquent amount is equal to or greater than the
aggregate amount of three monthly payment amounts (a "Defaulted Loan™), then
for so long as Participant owns the Participation Interest, Habitat shall use its best
efforts to replace such Defaulted Loan with a substitute loan (the “Substitute
Loan™). Any Substitute Loan must be secured by residential real estate located in
Alachua County, Florida, have a mortgage interest rate equal to the interest rate
of the Defaulted Loan, have a maturity date similar to the Defautted Loan,
otherwise meet all of the terms and canditions of this Agreement and all of the
representations and warranties ol Habitat hereunder.

{b) Each loan will have a Substitution True Up Workshest (“Worksheet™) prepared
at the time of each Purchase Date and made a part of the Participation Certificate,
a sample of which is attached as Exhibit D. The Worksheet will exhibit a value in
a column labeled “Habitat Repurchase Obligation” (“Habitat Repurchase
Obligation™). ‘The Habitat Repurchase Obligation shall reflect the remaining
balance owed to the Participant based on the Participant’s loan accounting
(amortization schedule which is an agreed upon and acceptable method to
Habitat) for the Participation. The Substitute Loan for the Defaulted Loan will
need to be in an amount that is equal to the corresponding value derived from the
Worksheet divided by .76725. If 76.725% of the Substitute Loan exceeds the
Habitat Repurchase Obligation then the Participant shall advance additional
monies to Habitat based on the incremental difference leaving a balance owing to
the Participant equal to 76.725% of the Substitute Loan. If 76.725% of the
Substitute Loan is less than the Habitat Repurchase Obligation then Habitat shall
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(c)

()

Section 9.

repay the incremental difference to the Participant leaving a balance owing to the
Participant equal to 76.725% of the Substitute Loan.

Upon Habitat’s substitution of a Substitute Loan, Habitat will issue a
Participation Certificate for the Substitute Loan to Participant, and Participant
shall transfer and convey its Participation Interest in the Defaulted Loan to
Habitat, without recourse or any warranty express or implied except for
Participant’s representation of ownership of its Participation Interest in the
Defaulted Loan. Participant shall execute all assignments, endorsements and
other instruments of conveyance as may be reasonably necessary.

In the event Habitat does not have a comparable Substilute Loan, Habitat shall,
within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from Participant of any Defaulted
Loans, repurchase the Defavlted Loan (s), at a price, payable in immediately
available funds, equal to the Habitat Repurchase Obligation. Upon Habitat's
repurchase of a Defaulted Loan, Participant shall transfer and convey to Habitat
its Participant Interest in the Defaulted Loan without recourse or any warranty
express or implied other than the warranty of ownership of the interest
transferred, Participant shall execute all assignments, endorsements and other
instruments of conveyance as may reasonably be necessary.

Upon discovery by either HMabitat or Participant of any breach of the
representations or warranties contained hergin that materiglly and adversely
affect the value of the Loans or the interest of the Participant therein or in a
related Loan (or the interest of the Participant in a related Loan in the case of a
representation and warranty relating to a particular Loan) the party discovering
such breach shall give prompt written notice to the other party. [In the event of
the discovery of such breach, Habitat shall, within thirty (30} days of receipt of
demand from Participant, repurchase any such Loan(s) for which a breach was
discovered (Defaulted Loan (5)), at the Habitat Repurchase Obligation value,
payable in immediately available funds. Upcn Habitat’s repurchase of a
Defaulted Loan, Participant shali transfer and convey to Habital its Participant
Interest in the Defaulted Loan without recourse ov any warranly express or
implied other than the warraaty of ownership of the interest transferred,
Participant shall execute all assignments, endorsements and other instruments of
conveyance as may reasonably be necessary. |

Indemnification,

(a) Habitat agrees to indemnify Participant and hold Participant harmless, on demand, for
and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions,
forfeitures, judgments, suits, costs, expenses ot disbursements (including fees and  disbursements of
gounsel and arbitration and arbitrator's fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be
imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against Participant in any way relating to or arising out of (i)
the material breach by Habitat of any of the representations and warranties contained in this
Agreement or (ii) the intentional misconduct, bad faith, or negligence of Habitat or its agent, AmeriNat
ol substitute servicer acceptable to Habitat and Participant, Habitat’s liability should not exceed

76.725% of the foregoing .
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(b} Participant agrees to indemnify Habitat and hold Habitat harmless, on demand, for and
against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, oblipations, losses, damages, penalties, actions,
Judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements (including fees and disbursements of counsel and
arbitration and arbitrator's fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be imposed on,
incurred by, or asserted against Habitat in any way relating to or arising out of a Loan and Loan
Documents that are not reimbursed or otherwise paid to or recovered by Habitat pursuant to the Loan
Documents; provided, however, that Participant shall not be lisble for any of the foregoing to the
extemt they arise from Flabitat’s or jts servicing agent’s intentional misconduct, bad faith, or negligence
and Participant’s liability should not exceed 76.725% of the foregoing, Should Habitat be sued or
threatened by suit by any receiver or trustee in bankruptey or by any Borrower as a debtor-in-
possession on account of any alleged preference, voidable transfer or fraudulent conveyance alleged
to have been received as the result of any transaction in respect of which Participant has participated
with Habitat hereonder, or if any clam, suit or action shall be asserted against Habitat relating to such
transactions, then in such event, any money paid by Habitat in satisfaction or compromise of such suit,
action or demand, any money paid required to be returned by Habitat to sech Borrower or its estate
and any costs or fees associated therewith shall be reimbursed to Habitat by Participant upon demand by
Habitat.

Section 10, Consideration for Sale. I consideration for the sale of Participation Interest of
the Loans by Habitay, Participant agrees to pay to Habitat an amount equal to 77.5% of 99%, or stated
another way 76.725% of the sum of the aggregate outstanding principal and other fees and charges due
and owing on the Loans sold ("Porchase Price™); at the time of purchase. The Purchase Price for the
L.oans shall be paid by Participant (o Habitat on the date of purchase by wire transfer of immediately
available funds to the account designated by Habitat or a bank check.

Section 11, Setoff bv Habitat, Habitat agrees that if it should receive through the exercise

of any right of counterclaim, setoff, banker's lien or otherwise, any Collections in respect to the

Loans, that Habitat will remit the Participant's Share of such funds to Participant in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement.

Section 12,  Participant's Ownership,

a) It is the intention of Participant and Habitat that Participant shall become vested with an
undivided equitable ownership interest {(proportional to such Participation from time to time) in the
Loans and Collateral as evidenced by the Loan Documents and that this Agreement shall have the
same force and effect as if separate assignments of each Loan, Loan Document, and respective
Collateral were execited, delivered by Habitat and as if a separate endorsement were made to the
promissory note for each Loan to reflect that Participant owns an undivided interest in such Loan. If
Habitat acquires any securily interests or liens granted by any of the Loan Documents, Participant
shall have an undivided interest in such security interest or lien equal to its Participation in the Loan,
notwithstanding the fact that the security interest or lien s in the pame of, andf/or possession is
maintained by Habitat. If there is an amendment to any applicable bankruptey law, or if there is a
ruling of a court of competent jurisdiction, to the effect that the holding of the Participation Interest is
an extension of credit, Habitat shall take such additional steps as Participant may reasonably require,
at Participant's expense, to assure Participant's legal rights as an owner of interest in the Loans,

(by ANl Loan Documents and the rights conveyed by them executed and delivered in

contnection with any Loan shall be held by Habitat in trust for the pro rata benefit of Habitat and .

Participant, and as servicing agent for Participant, Habitat is authorized to retain the Notes and the
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Loan Documents in Habitat's name and to deal with paities other than Participant as though Habitat
were an absolute owner of the Loan and the Loan Documents. Any person, firm or corporation may
deal with HMabitat concerning the Loan in the same manner as if the Participation was not outstanding
and Habitat was the sole owner of the Loan, except as Habitat's rights may be limited by this
Agreement. Habitat may perform any of its obligations hereunder by or through its agents, employees
or attorney.

(c) Participant and Habitat acknowledge and agree with respect to each Loan that:

(i) Habitat is expected to exercise due diligence in determining (i) the accuracy of
any statement, warranty, representation or certification made by a Borrower and/or any
guarantors in, or in connection with, any document relevant to the Loan, and (ii) the financial
condition of a Borrower and any guarantor with respect to the Loan or the performance or
observance of any obligations by a Borrower or any guarantor with respect to the Loan,

(ii) The sale of a Participation does not constitute the sale of a "security” under or as
defined in the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

(iii)  The relationship between Habitat and Participant is and shall be that of a seller

and purchaser of a property interest and not a debtor-creditor relationship. This Agreement is not
intended to constitute, nor shall it be construed to establish, a partnership or joint venture
between Habitat and Participant,

()  Although Habitat holds for Participant’s proportional benefit all Collateral securing
performance and payment of & Borrower's obligations and liabilities under and in connection with any
f.oan, Participant shall have no interest in any other property taken as security for any other credit,
loan or financial accommodation made or furnished to any Borrower by Habitat in which Participant
has no Participation. This shall include any property now or hereafter in Habitat's possession or under
Habitat's control or in any deposit held that may be or may become security for performance or
payment of a Borrower's or guarantor's obligations and liabilities under and in connection with other
indebtedness owing to Habitat by reason of the general description contained in any other instrurhent
held by Habitat or by reason of any right of setoff, counterclaim, banker's lien or otherwise; provided,
however, if such property, deposit, indebtedness or the proceeds thersof shall be applied to the
payment or reduction of principal, interest, fees or any other amounts owing by a Borrower or
guarantor in connection with a Loan, then Participant shall be entitled to its pro rata share of
such payment, All collateral securing performance and payment of a Borrower's obligations and
liabilities under and in connection with any Loan may be used by Habitat in connection with other
indebtedness owing to Habitat, but only if lien position is specifically subordinate to the Loan.

Section 13, Miscelianeous Provisions,

(a) This document contains the entire agreement among the parties in regard to
the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings,

(b) This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until all of
Participant's undivided participation interests in the Loans represented by the Participation
Interest, including, without limitation, the underlying Collateral, are liquidated or discharged
completely. The indemnities provided for in this Agreement shall survive any such termination of
this Agreement.
15



() All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing, addressed
as follows:

If to kabitat:
Scott Wirzeler
Executive Director
Alachua Habitat for Husmanity
2630 WW 41" Street
Suite C-3
Gainesville, FL 32606
Telephone: 352-371-5871
Facsimile: 352-378-2306
Email: swinzeler@alachuahabitat.org

If to Participant; David Wilson
Renasant Bank
4373 Newberry Road
Gainesville, FL 32607
Telephone: 352-224-1900
Facsimile: 352-224-1902
Email: david.wilson(@renasant.com

Any notice to be delivered to a party hereto will be effective upon delivery by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or overnight delivery service, or by
electronic mail, telecopy or facsimile machine. Change of address may be made by giving
written notice of the chanpe of address to the other party hereto,

() This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of Florida applicable to contracts made and to be fully performed in such state, without
otherwise giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof,

(e) This Agreement may be executed, acknowledped, and delivered in any
nunber of counterparts. Each such counterpart sihail constitute an original but all of such
counterparts taken together shall constitute one agreement.

(t) This Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented only by a
written instrument executed by the parties hereto. The invalidity, ilegality or unenforceability of one
or more of the provisions of this Agreement in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity, legality
or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement in such jurisdiction or the validity, legality or
enforceability of this Agreement, including any such provision in any other jurisdiction, it

being intended that all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be enforceable to the:

fullest extent permitted by law.

(2) The headings of the various sections of this Agreement have been inserted for
convenience of reference only and shatl not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement,

(h) This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, except as such assignments are
prohibited herein, WNeither parly hereto shall assign all or any part of the rights or obligations

16



arising hereundet without the prior written consent of the other party; provided, however, that each
of the parties hereto may, without such consent, assign all or any of the rights and
obligations arising under this Agreement to (i) a subsidiary, parent or subsidiary of a parent of such
party, or (ii) any successor (by merger or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the assets and
liabilities of such party; and provided, further, that such assignee or successor shall enter into a written
agreement in form and content acceptable to all parties hereto agreeing to be bound by the terms
hereof.

{H None of the provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any
Borrower or any person other than Participant and Habitat and their respective successors and
permitted assigns. Participant may assign its Participation interest to an Affiliate. Habitat may assign
or encumber its interest in the Loans with the prior written consent of Participant.  Borrowers and

any person other than Participant and Habitat and thetr respective suceessors and permitted -

assigns shall not be entitled to rely upon or raise as a defense, in any manner whatsoever, the
failure of Participant or Habitat to comply with the provisions of this Agreement or to enforce
their rights hereunder. Neither Participant nor Habitar shall incur any lability to any Borrower or
any other person for any act or omission of the other, “Affiliate™ shall mean any entity that controls
Participant, that Participant controls, or that is under common control with Participant.

] The partics hercto agree to execute any additional documents, obtain
permissions, meet any requirements or perform any other acts necessary to assure the intent of this
Agreement is fully performed,

(k) Nothing herein contained confers on either party any interest in or subjects
gither party to any liability on account of the assets or liabilities of the other, except for Participant's
Participation Interest.

{1} This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

(m)  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be imerpreted in
such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but i any provision of this Agreement
shall be prohibited by or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of

such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining

provisions of this Agreement.

(n) Habitat agrees to maintain, for a minimum of five (5) years after the repayment,
repurchase or other termination of Participant’s Participation, adequate books, records, and supporting
docurnents to verify the amounts, recipients, and uses of all disbursements of funds passing in
conjunction with any Loan and Loan Documents. Habitat agrees that all books, records, and
supporting documents related to any Loan and the Loan Documents shall be available for review and
audit by the regulators of Participant and agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to provide full
access to all relevant materials. Habitat further agrees that it will make available to the Treasury
Inspector General all books and records related to the use of the Collections and Purchase Price, subject
to the Right to Financial Privacy Act (12 U.S.C. § 3401 et seq.), including detailed Loan records, as
applicable.
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[sigmature page to the Master Participation Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and

year first above written.
RENASANT BANK ZQMQ
(PARTICIPANT) ) ¢
By: PatPe. ) sy
Printed Name .
Title: &ra nespslle TN prted” @w: ,i,_;rf

Date: "‘5"’ /M/g

Alachua Habitat for Humanity

o et

Printed Nm‘i e Seoff Winraier
Title: E weeulres N pte for

Date: S-{~ 2613




EXHIBIT A
SAMPLE COMMITMENT LETTER

Date
Name: Alachua Habitat for Humanity
Address: 2630 NW 41" Street
Suite C-3Gainesville, FL 32606-7495

Re: Master Participation Agreement dated:

Dear

Renasant Bank (“Renasant™) hereby agrees to purchase a ninety-nine percent (99%) Participation interest
in your loan to (Borrower) for 77.5% of the 99% of the principal
owed, or stated another way, 76.725% of such principal, which is § (the “Purchase
Price™) less the Booking Fee references below, such purchase being on the terms and conditions described
in the Application for Participation related to such Loan submitted by you to Renasant. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Participant may deduct and retain $100.00 from the Purchase Price as a fee for booking the
Participation interest. Among the terins applicable to this loan are the following:

1. Loan MNumber

2. Amount of Loan §

3. Habitat Portion § Habitat Percentage 1%
4. Renasant Portion § Renasant Percentage 99%
5. Habitat Rate (Fixed/Variable/Adjustable)

6. Loan Terms:

Habitat Terms: w..g

Renasant Terms:

7. Address of Borrower:

! e .}rw*w



This commitment, and any subsequent funding of the Participation, is subject to the following
contingencies:

1

Habitat shall provide one Note evidencing the full amount of Habitat's Loan to include
Renasant’s Portion,

In no case will Renasant’s term of obligation exceed the maturity date as shown on the Note,

At all times during which Renasant owns a Participation interest in a Loan or until the Loan is
paid in full, Habitat shall continue to own at least one percent (1%6) of the total amount of the
Loan. Additionally, Renasant’s principal balance may never exceed the agreed upon
Participation percentage of the Borrower's principal balance.

This purchase of a Participation in such Loan 1s made pursuant to and shall be governed by the
Master Participation Agreement, by and between you and Renasant (the “Master Participation
Agreement™), All capitalized terms used m this Commitment Letter not otherwise defined herein
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Master Participation Agreement.

This Commitment Letter does not obligate Renasant for an extension of credit beyond the terms
as described above, It is mutually understood and agreed that this Commitiment Letter and/or the
Master Participation Agreement represents the entire understanding between Habitat and
Renasant regarding the terns applicable to this Participation and thal no oral representations or
inducements regarding the terms applicable ta this Participation that are not included or embodied
in this letter and agreement shall be of any force and effect.

Habitat is notified that, in any instance where the length of the principal amortization schedule
exceeds the number of years of the Loan tern to which Renasant is committing, thus obligating
the Borrower to make a balloon payment at the end of the initial term, Renasant is under no
obligation, whatsoever, to participate in any financing of said balloon for any future term.

After receipt of the Purchase Price Habitat must provide an original Participation Certificate
(Exhibit B of the Master Participation Agreement) and copies of Habitat’s executed Loan
Dacuments as described in the Master Loan Participation Agreement within fifteen (13) business

- days of closing,.

Habitat, upon receipt of Renasant funds, shal] provide a receipt of funds and return it to Renasant
at the same address as set forth in paragraph ten (10) below.

Payiments will be made to Renasant attention:
Please include with each payment the Report/Payment Distribution Suinmary and Transmittal
showing the receipt of the payment and the details of how the total payment was distributed.



This will confirm your acceptance of these conditions. Pursvant to the Master Loan Participation
Agreement, this commitment letter will expire thirty (30) days from the date of this letter, unless a
written extension is granted. Please sign, date and return this original commitment letter to!

David Wilson

Market President
Renasant Bank

4373 Newberry Road
Gainesville, FL 32607

Renasant Bank (Participant}

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Alachua Habitat for Humanity (Lender)

Printed Name:

By:

fts:

Date;




EXHIBIT B
PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned lender (the “Lender”) and Renasant Bank (“Renasant”) have entered in a Master

Participation Agreement dated __, 2018 (the “Master Agreement™) pursuant to

which such parties have agreed that Renasant from time to time may purchase from the Lender,
Participations in loans made by the Lender. This Participation Certificate shall acknowledge the purchase

of such a 99% participation (the “Participation™) in a loan (the “Loan™) of the Lender to

{the “Borrower™), Loan Number , pursuant to the
terms and conditions of that certain Commitment Letter dated L2001 ({the
“Commitment Letter”), The Loan was made on , 201 on the terms and

conditions described in the Commitment Letter and those contained in the Application for Participation
related to the Loan subinitted by the Lender to Renasant,

The Lender represents to Renasant (2) that the Loan has been made on the terms and conditions
described in the related Application for Participation submitted to Renasant, (b) that it has provided to
Renasant copies of the promissory note and all other documentation required by Section 2 of the Master
Agreement, and such copies are true and correct as of the date hereof. This Participation shall be

governed by all of the terms and conditions contained in the Master Agreement and the Commitment

l.etter,
Alachua Habitat for Humanity
(LENDER)
By: "
Printed Name
Title:
Date:
Acknowledged:
Renasant Bank
By: (Gainesville Market President)

[ate:




EXHIBIT C
Renasant Bank (Renasant)
Alachna Habitat for Humanity Participation Program
APPLICATION FOR PARTICIPATION

Lender Alachua Habitat for Hunanity

Contact Title

Address 2630 NW 417 Street, C-3 . FEIN

City Gainesville State FL Zip 32606-7495
Telephone FAX -
Borrower

We request approval for participation in the following loan:

Totsl Amount of Loan: § Loan Number

Lender Share: § Lender Percent L%
Renasant Share: § Renasant Percent 09%
Tnterest Rate % Loan Term Amortization

Combined Loan Payment: § Beginning:

The folowing must be completed and submitted:
Habitat’s Application for Participation.
Borrower’s Loan Application.

Habitat's Internal Loan Report to include:
Borrower’s tax returns for two years.
Borrower’s Credit Report(s).

G

LENDER’S CERTIFICATION

} certify to Renasant that the loan represented by this Application for Participation is approved and subject
to terms specified. [ have reviewed and verified the information in the Borrowet’s Application and the
documentation supporting this Application for Participation. 1 certify, to the extent of my knowiedge,
that the Representations and Warranties as to the Loan set forth in Section 3 of the Master Participation
Agreement are or will be true and correct therein stated. ! certify that loan is not refinancing of a toan

previously made to that borrower by the lender or an affiliate of the lender.

Certifying Lender Signature Title Date
FOR RENASANT USE ONLY

Borroweris [ ]eligible [1ineligible

Borrower [ ] has [ ] has not demonstrated the ability to carry out the project
Participation [ ] recommended { ] not recommended [ ] recommended for § o

Review Committee Approval

1
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y’ IRS Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
P

¥38355

:JQ’;P(‘MLE AT~ ’

.0. Box 2508 In reply refer to: 0268206044
Cincinnati OH 485201 Dec. 12, 2016 LTR 4168C 0
59-2750078 000000 00
gool8080
BODC: TE

ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY INC
% ROBIN BASTANZI

2630 NW 41ST ST STE C3
GAINESVILLE FL 32606

Emplover ID Number: 59-2750078
Form 990 required: YES

Dear Taxpayer:

This is in response to your request dated Dec. 01, 2016, regarding
vour tax-exempt status.

We issued vou a determination letter in January 1987, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(e)
C3Y

Our records also indicate vou're not a private foundation as defined
under IRC Section 509(a) because vou're described in IRC Sections
509(a)(1) and 170Ch) (1) CA)(vi).

Donors can deduct contributions theyv make to vou as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether vou must file an

annual information return. If a return is required, vou must file Form
990, 990-EZ, 990-N, or 990-PF by the 15th day of the fifth month after
the end of vour annual accounting period. IRC Section 6033(j) provides
that, if vou don't file a required annual information return or notice
for three consecutive vears, yvour exempt status will be automatically
revoked on the filing due date of the third required return or notice.

Faor tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit www.irs.gov or
call 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If vou have gquestions, call 1-877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.,

local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
Time).

10D
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0268206046
Dec. 12, 2016 LTR 4168C ]
59-2750078 000000 0O

oool1s8081

ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY INC
% ROBIN BASTANZI

2630 NW 4l1ST ST STE C3
GAINESVILLE FL 32606

Sincerely vours,

K okl p-

Kim A. Billups, Operations Manager
Accounts Management Operations 1

[O6
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s uu T S DR_14
Consumer emption R. 10/15

lsa Pursuant to Chaer 12, Florida Statutes

FLORIDA
85-B012633598C-6 11/30/2017 11/30/2022 501(C)(3) ORGANIZATION
Certificate Number Effective Date Expiration Date Exemption Category

This certifies that

ALACHUA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY INC
2317 8W 13TH ST
GAINESVILLE FL 32608-2010

is exempt from the payment of Florida sales and use tax on real property rented, transient rental property rented, tangible
personal property purchased or rented, or services purchased.

T g e — B . DR-14
! Important Information for Exempt Organizations R. 10/15
FLORIDA :
i You must provide all vendors and suppliers with an exemption certificate before making tax-exempt purchases.
See Rule 12A-1.038, Florida Administrative Code (FA.C.).
2, Your Consurmer’s Certificate of Exemnption is to be used solely by your organization for your organization's
customary nonprofit activities.
3. Purchases made by an individual on behalf of the organization are taxable, even if the individual will be
reimbursed by the organization.
4, This exemption applies only to purchases your organization makes. The sale or lease to others of tangible

personal property, sleeping accommodations, or other real property is taxable. Your organization must register,
and collect and remit sales and use tax on such taxable transactions. Note: Churches are exempt from this
requirement except when they are the lessor of real property (Rule 12A-1.070, FA.C.).

5, It is a criminal offense to fraudulently present this certificate to evade the payment of sales tax. Under no
circumstances should this certificate be used for the personal benefit of any individual. Violators will be liable for
payment of the sales tax plus a penalty of 200% of the tax, and may be subject to conviction of a third-degree
felony. Any violation will require the revocation of this certificate.

B, If you have questions regarding your exemption certificate, please contact the Exemption Unit of Account
Management at 800-352-3671. From the available options, select “Registration of Taxes,” then “Registration
Information,” and finally “Exemption Certificates and Nonprofit Entities.” The mailing address is PO Box 6480,
Tallahassee, FL 32314-6480.
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- NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES
DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

This notice is written pursuant to the Drug Free Workplace Act, 41,
U.S.C. §§ 701 and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR 24.

Alachua Habitat for Humanity is a Drug Free Workplace.

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, or use of a
controlled substance is prohibited in Alachua Habitat’s workplace and
program. Drug abuse violations in the workplace will result in
immediate suspension, termination, or mandatory participation ina
drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program as determined upon
review by the employee’s supervisor.

It is the policy of Alachua Habitat for Humanity to maintain a Dmg
Free Workplace. To this end, Alachua Habitat will offer Drug
Awareness programs and will assist, by referral, any employee
seeking drug counseling or programs of rehabilitation.

As a condition of employment at Alachua Habitat the employee will
abide by the conditions of this statement and also will notify Alachua
Habitat for Humanity in writing of his/her conviction for a violation of
a criminal drug statute, occurring in the workplace, no later than five
calendar days after such conviction. '

j\ ﬁ ! Date %“;’ /(,\

Nama




Exhibit2 - BIDDER VERIFICATION FORM

LOCAI PREFERENCE (Check one)
Lacal Preference requested: \YES 0O NO

A copy of the following documents must be included in your submission if you are requesting Local Preference:

+ Business Tax Receipt
¢ Zoning Compliance Permit

a Service ed veteran Business Status

Is your business qualified, in accordance with the City of Gainesville's Small Business Procurement Program, as a local
Small Business? OYES [ONO

Is your business qualified, in accordance with the City of Gainesiille's Small Business Procurement Program, as a local
Senice-Disabled Veteran Business? 0 YES O NO

Living Wage Compliance

ee Living Wage Decision Tree (Exhibit 3):
Living Wage Ordinance does not apply (check all that apply)

Not a covwered senice
\EI Contract does not exceed $100,000

] Not a for-profit individual, business entity, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture,
= or similar business, who or which employees 50 or more persons, but not including employees of any
subsidiaries, affiliates or parent businesses.

O Located within the City of Gainesville enterprise zone.

O Living Wage Ordinance applies and the completed Certification of Compliance with Living Wage is included with
this bid.

NOTE: If Contractor has stated Living Wage Ordinance does not apply and it is later determined Living Wage Ordinance
does apply, Contractor will be required to comply with the provision of the City of Gainesville's living wage requirements, as
applicable, without any adjustment to the bid price.

REGISTERED 1D

Is Bidder registered with Florida Department of State's, Division of Corporations, to do business in the State of Florida?
LYES 0O NO (refer to Part 1, 1.6, last paragraph)

% L ol
If the answer is “YES", provide a copy of SunBiz registration or SunBiz Document Number (# ;™ £ ) )‘,_) )

If the answer Is “NO", please state reason why:
DIVERSI (Applies to solicitations above $50,000) A

e

Does your company have a policy on diversity and inclusion? O YES v ‘NO

If yes, please attach a copy of the policy to your submittal.

Note: Possessing a diversity and inclusion policy will have no effect on the City's consideration of your submittal, but is
simply being requested for information gathering purposes.

A AN HAG 1A FUA, HUra /e T
Bidder's Name

Printed Name/Title of Authorized Representative

(/,\/\/ _‘f

Signature. {;f Authun\zégi Representative Date

’}/,_/

' C i
This page must be completed and uploaded to DemandStar.com with your Submittal, ’ kﬂj \
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Exhibit5 — REFERENCE FORM

Name of Bidder: __/\(L /A Jt Ve [NALOIT 7ol FUL. HOsomeo) I3

Provide information for at least three (3) references of similar scope performed within the past
three years. You may include photos or other pertinent information.

#1 Year(s) services provided (For Example: 1/2018 to 12/2019);_T_(5] 7~ (PO T

Company Name: (COONRALTIAS S IP |
Address: 200 ANE, WAL _
City, State Zip: l_fw JESNS IS > Pl TILE ﬂ)j
Contact Name: I

Phone Number: :,i, u,/ij '“w_,f :_ Fax Number:

Email Address (if available):

#2 Year(s) services provided (For Example 1/2018 to 12/2019). (D} 1 ~ (U ILLE

Company Name: AD(, 5 P

Address: 2] } A \) f'\' LA | h..ﬂh“)

City, State Zip: GA 15 ; {5 ‘~, i 2, 6049
Contact Name: r

Phone Number: "B :/Jiu S5 C~ Fax Number:

Email Address (if available):

#3 Year(s) services provided (For Example: 1/2018 to 12/2019)

Company Name: eVl Ex) LbeS) XV iA
Address: 7 '7){';,-/')';5} Pl TR Y

City, State Zip: & ;/A ~EINNIL, FL 1, ¢ > (A
ContactName: 290251 - X} (> g

Phone Number: / Fax Number:

Email Address (if available):
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